


Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to

STANDALONE

standalone financial statements and such controls
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 22109632AJQCSP7480

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2022
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 March 2022

% in lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 55,851.70 49,006.73
Right-of-use-asset 3B 4,151.89 4,301.44
Capital work-in-progress 3C 199.52 5,337.02
Intangible assets 3D 396.64 593.49
Investments in subsidiary and unincorporated entities 5 36,434.84 41,002.49
Financial assets
Other financial assets 6 4,717.09 2,676.42
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 606.40 513.84
Income tax assets (net) 7 9,542.76 5,004.68
Other non-current assets 8 6,848.61 5,569.48
Total non-current assets 1,18,749.45 1,14,005.59
Current assets
Inventories 9 34,921.79 27,128.14
Financial assets
Investments 10 - -
Trade receivables 11 59,472.57 48,132.51
Cash and cash equivalents 12 28,981.83 8,101.62
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 8,489.32 6,743.94
Loans 14 - 34.84
Other financial assets 6 2,852.84 1,971.70
Unbilled work-in-progress (contract assets) 15 64,584.74 65,651.19
Other current assets 8 16,547.90 14,688.11
Total current assets 2,15,850.99 1,72,452.05
TOTAL ASSETS 3,34,600.44 2,86,457.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 1,717.88 1,717.88
Other equity 1,11,401.75 1,04,853.05
Total equity 1,13,119.63 1,06,570.93
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 8,735.98 8,696.01
Lease liabilities 18 3,174.88 2,924.60
Provisions 19 3,711.39 4,013.71
Total non-current liabilities 15,622.25 15,634.32
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 42,774.64 30,967.07
Lease liabilities 18 1,362.35 1,921.37
Trade payables 21
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,123.13 1,416.18
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 68,712.04 52,328.36
Other financial liabilities 22 6,363.40 6,662.98
Other current liabilities 23 81,431.69 69,906.99
Provisions 19 1,091.31 1,049.44
Total current liabilities 2,05,858.56 1,64,252.39
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,34,600.44 2,86,457.64
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013
Rakesh R. Agarwal Santi Jongkongka Jayanta Basu
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312 DIN: 08291114
Prasad Patwardhan Rahul Neogi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACA No.44453 ACS No.10653
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Note No. 31 Ji?;f;g;?
Income
Revenue from operations 24 3,24,952.73 2,20,831.88
Other income 25 863.93 856.68
Total income 3,25,816.66 2,21,688.56
Expenses
Cost of construction materials consumed 26 1,09,023.42 63,538.00
Subcontracting expenses 78,039.63 59,269.58
Employee benefits expense 27 34,890.80 30,131.58
Finance costs 28 13,240.97 11,133.68
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 9,490.74 8,284.07
Other expenses 29 72,927.96 47,405.74
Total expenses 3,17,613.52 2,19,762.65
Profit before tax 8,203.14 1,925.91
Tax expense 7

Current tax expense 1,481.50 477.41

Deferred tax credit (159.77) (127.43)

1,321.73 349.98

Net profit for the year (A) 6,881.41 1,575.93
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

- Gain on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 267.06 199.89

- Tax effect on above (67.21) (50.31)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

- Exchange difference of foreign operations (326.41) 99.96
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (B) (126.56) 249.54
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 6,754.85 1,825.47
Earnings per equity share of nominal value ¥ 1 each
Basic (in ) 30 4.01 0.92
Diluted (in ?) 4.01 0.92

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Santi Jongkongka Jayanta Basu
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312 DIN: 08291114
Prasad Patwardhan Rahul Neogi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACA No.44453 ACS No.10653
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2022

% in lakhs
Year ended

31 March 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax 8,203.14 1,925.91
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,490.74 8,284.07
Finance costs 13,240.97 11,133.68
Interest income (391.47) (574.51)
Impairment allowance on financial / non-financial assets 851.87 1,252.03
Share of loss/ (profit) from unincorporated entities (net) 853.05 (807.15)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 91.11) (233.10)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 43.23 1.69
Provision no longer required written back - (848.21)
Operating profit before working capital changes 32,200.42 20,134.41
Adjustment for changes in working capital
Increase in Inventories (7,793.65) (7,452.55)
Increase in trade receivables (11,546.23) (2,902.36)
(Increase) / Decrease in financial and other assets (2,915.54) 548.95
(Increase) / Decrease in unbilled work-in-progress (contract assets) 420.75 (15,353.14)
Increase in trade payables 19,090.63 8,074.69
Increase in financial / other liabilities and provisions 12,130.79 5,339.51
Cash generated from operations 41,587.17 8,389.51
Direct taxes paid (net) (6,012.91) (3,516.92)
Net cash generated from operating activities 35,574.26 4,872.59

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including intangible assets, capital work-in-progress, capital (10,886.45) (14,112.67)
advances/payables)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 785.13 1,333.36
Net Investments in bank deposits (3,846.32) (4,175.76)
Net proceeds from unincorporated entity 11,379.57 11,090.81
Investment in unincorporated entity (9,091.04) (5,369.38)
Interest received 326.28 292.31
Net cash used in investing activities (11,332.83) (10,941.33)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 3,998.11 9,355.82
Repayment of non-current borrowings (2,142.13) (1,748.58)
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings (net) 9,991.56 902.67
Repayment of lease obligation (2,484.75) (2,607.04)
Finance costs paid (12,517.73) (10,050.61)
Dividend paid (206.28) (514.97)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,361.22) (4,662.71)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 20,880.21 (10,731.45)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 8,101.62 18,833.07
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (Refer note 12) 28,981.83 8,101.62

Note:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the cash flow statement referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Santi Jongkongka
Partner Executive Vice Chairman
Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312

Prasad Patwardhan
Chief Financial Officer

ACA No.44453
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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Jayanta Basu
Managing Director
DIN: 08291114

Rahul Neogi
Company Secretary
ACS No.10653



as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

STANDALONE

Particulars Number % in lakhs
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each issued, subscribed and paid
As at 1 April 2020 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issue of equity share - -
As at 31 March 2021 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issue of equity share - -
As at 31 March 2022 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
% in lakhs
Reserves and surplus Equity instruments at Exchange differences Total equity

on translating the

Particulars Securities General Retained fair value through other financial statements attributable to
premium reserve earnings comprehensive income of a foreign operation equity holders
As at 1 April 2020 78,512.04 676.48 24,354.68 (0.26) - 1,03,542.94
Total comprehensive income for the - - 1,725.51 - 99.96 1,825.47
year
Dividend paid - - (515.36) - - (515.36)
As at 31 March 2021 78,512.04 676.48 25,564.83 (0.26) 99.96 1,04,853.05
Total comprehensive income for the - - 7,081.26 - (326.41) 6,754.85
year
Dividend paid - - (206.15) - - (206.15)
As at 31 March 2022 78,512.04 676.48 32,439.94 (0.26) (226.45) 1,11,401.75

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. This account is utilised in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’).

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified
percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to the introduction of the Companies Act, 2013, the
requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

Retained earnings represents the profits/losses that the Company has earned / incurred till date including gain / (loss) on fair
value of defined benefits plans as adjusted for distributions to owners, transfer to other reserves etc.

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive
income. These changes are accumulated within fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) reserve within equity.
The Company transfers amount from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(v) Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation

The Company has recognised exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations (i.e. Branch in Myanmar) in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in ‘Foreign Currency Translation Reserve’ in Other Equity.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Santi Jongkongka Jayanta Basu
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312 DIN: 08291114
Prasad Patwardhan Rahul Neogi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACA No.44453 ACS No.10653
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

ITD Cementation India Limited (‘ITD Cem’ or ‘the Company’)
is a public company domiciled in India and was incorporated
in 1978 under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act,
1956. The Company having CIN L61000MH1978PLC020435,
is engaged in construction of a wide variety of structures like
maritime structures, Mass Rapid Transport Systems (MRTS),
dams & tunnels, airports, highways, bridges & flyovers and
other foundations and specialised engineering work. Its shares
are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India - the
Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange.
The registered office of the Company is located at National
Plastic Building, A - Subhash Road, Paranjape B Scheme, Vile
Parle (East), Mumbai 400 057, India.

The standalone financial statements (“the financial statements”)
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022, were
authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the
Board of Directors on 26 May 2022.

i. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, with the exception of certain
financial assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value, on an accrual basis of accounting.

The Company’s financial statements are reported in
Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional
currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs
(¥ 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the
indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

ii. Operating cycle for current and non-current
classification:

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the
operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance
set out in Schedule Il to the Act. Operating cycle for the
business activities of the Company covers the duration
of the project / contract / service including the defect
liability period, wherever applicable, and extends upto
the realisation of receivables (including retention monies)

STANDALONE

within the credit period normally applicable to the
respective project.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity
with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS, requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as
at the date of financial statements and the results of
operation during the reported period. Although these
estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ
from these estimates which are recognised in the period
in which they are determined.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in
the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

The outbreak of COVID-19 had disrupted regular
business operations of the Company due to the lock
down restrictions and other emergency measures
imposed by the Government from time to time. The
operations of the Company have started recovering
from the economic slowdown caused by COVID-19
pandemic and reaching normalcy. The management
has taken into account the possible impacts of
known events, upto the date of the approval of these
financial results, arising from COVID-19 pandemic
on the carrying value of the assets and liabilities as
at 31 March 2022. While the Company continues to
closely monitor the impact of COVID-19 pandemic,
there exists uncertainty in estimating the future
impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Company and,
accordingly, the actual impact in the future may be
different from those presently estimated.

Refer note 2(xvi)(a)
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
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The Company has performed valuation for its
investments in equity of certain subsidiaries and
joint ventures for assessing whether there is any
impairment in the fair value. When the fair value of
investments in subsidiaries cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. Similar
assessment is carried for exposure of the nature of
loans and interest receivable thereon. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as expected earnings in future years,
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of these investments.

In assessing the realisability of deferred income
tax assets, management considers whether some
portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will
not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred
income tax assets is dependent upon the generation
of future taxable income during the periods in which
the temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversals
of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income and tax planning strategies in making
this assessment. Based on the level of historical
taxable income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods in which the deferred
income tax assets are deductible, management
believes that the Company will realize the benefits
of those deductible differences. The amount of the
deferred income tax assets considered realizable,
however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry
forward period are reduced.

The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation
and compensated absences are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

ITD Cementation India Limited

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies
to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease required significant
judgement. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount
rate. The Company revises the lease term if there is
a change in non-cancellable period of a lease.

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s
expected useful life and the expected residual value
at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of assets are determined by the management
at the time of acquisition of asset and reviewed
periodically, including at each financial year. The
lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which
may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

A provision is recognised when the Company has
a present obligation as result of a past event and
it is probable that the outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised in the financial statements. Contingent
assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair
value at each balance sheet date. (Refer note 36)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

-In the absence of a principal market, In the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.



as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for
which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the
movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the
Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as

vi.

vii.

viii.

STANDALONE

explained above. This note summarises accounting policy
for fair value.

Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates
and assumptions (notes 35, 38, 39 and 40).

- Financial instruments (including those carried at
amortised cost) (notes 6, 11, 12, 13, 17, 18, 20, 21, and 22).

- Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement
hierarchy (note 36).

Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible assets)

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost of
acquisition including attributable interest and finance
costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the
assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and
related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from
active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure
incurred in respect of assets under development and not
ready for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost
includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost
and other direct expenditure.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably, less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets mainly comprise of license fees and
implementation cost for software and other application
software acquired for in-house use.
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Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment so as to expense the cost less residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight line basis. Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use, over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Asset category Useful life (in years)

Basis of determination of useful lives*

Buildings 60
Leasehold improvements

Plant and equipment (including tools and 3to 21
equipment)

Vehicles 8
Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3to6
Intangible (Computer software) 5

Lower of lease period or 5 years

Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.

Based on technical evaluation by management’s
expert.

Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.

A Useful lives of asset classes determined by management estimate, which are generally higher than those prescribed under Schedule Il to the

Act and are supported by the internal technical assessment of useful lives.

The estimated useful life and residual values are reviewed
at each financial year end and the effect of any change
in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted
on prospective basis.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis,
from the date on which asset is ready to use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss under
Other income and Other expenses.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Initial Recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date i.e., the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in following categories:

- Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost if these financial assets are held within a business

ITD Cementation India Limited

(iii)

model with an objective to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method. Impairment
gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’) if these financial assets
are held within a business model with an objective to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair
value through OCl is carried at FVPL.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL’) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets
and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition
of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
Simplified approach does not require the Company
to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
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(iv)

(i)

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the
period is recognised as income/expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are
issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are
issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at
fair value of the equity instrument.

(i)

STANDALONE

Financial Liabilities
- Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings
and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

- Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, as described below :

- Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company
are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised
as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of
the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

- Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments
i.e. foreign exchange forward and options contracts to
manage its exposure to foreign exchange risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognized
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
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is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. The Company uses hedging instruments that are
governed by the policies of the Company.

Hedge Accounting

The Company uses foreign currency forward and options
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks which are
initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the period
when they arise.

- De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Employee Benefits

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as
superannuation scheme, employees’ state insurance,
labour welfare are charged as an expense based on
the amount of contribution required to be made as and
when services are rendered by the employees. The above
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes
as the Company has no further obligations beyond the
monthly contributions.

In respect of certain employees, provident fund
contributions are made to a trust administered by the
Company. The interest rate payable to the members of the
trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest
declared by Central Government under Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
and shortfall, if any, shall be made good by the Company.
The contribution paid or payable including the interest
shortfall, if any, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which services are rendered by the employee.
Accordingly the Provident Fund is treated as a defined
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benefit plan. Further, the pattern of investments for
investible funds is as prescribed by the Government.
Accordingly, other related disclosures in respect of
provident fund have not been made.

The Company also provides for gratuity which is a defined
benefit plan, the liabilities of which is determined based
on valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by
an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains
and losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in the
OCI, in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognised in OCI are not reclassified to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year of plan amendment or curtailment.

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised
within next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. Leave entitlement, other than short
term compensated absences, are provided based on a
actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re-
measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses,
in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
occur.

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages,
performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses
at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit
and Loss of the period in which the related service is
rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated
absences is recognised in the period in which the
absences occur.

Inventories

Construction materials are valued at lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average method and comprises the purchase price
including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities).
Net Realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale.

Spares that are of regular use are charged to the statement
of profit and loss as and when consumed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet
comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three month or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker
regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of
the whole Company as one segment of “Construction”.
Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”,
the Company’s entire business falls under this one
operational segment and hence the necessary information
has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign Exchange Translation of Foreign Projects
and Accounting of Foreign Exchange Transaction

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are reported using the closing rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement
of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the
Company are recognised as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from providing
construction services.

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS
115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using
the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to
contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2019.
In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition
method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively
adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was
insignificant. On account of adoption of Ind AS 115,
unbilled work-in-progress (contract asset) has been
considered as non-financial asset and accordingly
classified under other current assets.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in
exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from construction services, where the
performance obligations are satisfied over time and where

STANDALONE

there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability
of consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-
completion method. The percentage-of-completion of a
contract is determined by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed upto the reporting date
bear to the estimated total contract costs. When there is
uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability,
revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty
is resolved.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring good or service to a customer excluding
amounts collected on behalf of a third party and is
adjusted for variable considerations.

Contract revenue earned in excess of certification are
classified as contract assets (which we refer as unbilled
work-in-progress) while certification in excess of contract
revenue are classified as contract liabilities (which we
refer to as due to customer). Advance payments received
from contractee for which no services are rendered are
presented as ‘Advance from contractee’.

Due to the nature of the work required to be performed
on many of the performance obligations, the estimation of
total revenue and cost of completion is complex, subject
to many variables and requires significant judgment.
Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due
to liquidated damages, price variation clauses, changes
in scope, incentives, if any. The Company considers its
experience with similar transactions and expectations
regarding the contract in estimating the amount of variable
consideration to which it will be entitled and determining
whether the estimated variable consideration should be
constrained. The Company includes estimated amounts
in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that
a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is resolved.The estimates of
variable consideration are based largely on an assessment
of anticipated performance and all information (historical,
current and forecasted) that is reasonably available.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions,
deletions or changes are approved either to the contract
scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications
of contracts involves assessing whether the services
added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the
pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added
that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative
catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted
for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the
additional services are priced at the standalone selling
price, or as a termination of the existing contract and
creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone
selling price.
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The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in
its Statement of Profit and Loss.

Costs to obtain a contract which are incurred regardless
of whether the contract was obtained are charged-off in
Statement of Profit and Loss immediately in the period in
which such costs are incurred.

In case of Unincorporated Entities in the nature of
subsidiary / joint venture, share of profit and loss are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when the right to receive the profit share or obligation to
settle the loss is established.

In case of Unincorporated Entities in the nature of a
Joint Operation; the Company recognises its direct right
to the assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenues
and expenses of joint operations and its share of any
jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. These have been incorporated in the financial
statements under the appropriate headings.

Other Income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable
Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Other items of income are accounted as and when the
right to receive such income arises and it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and
the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during
the period. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated
tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances
and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance
Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
between the financial statements’ carrying amount of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognised in the period that includes the
enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Leases

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS
116, “Leases” using the modified retrospective approach,
as a result of which the comparative information is not
required to be restated.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of
leases for land, building and plant and equipment. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
the consideration.

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the
Company recognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and a
corresponding lease liability for all the lease arrangements
in which it is a lease, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The estimated useful life of the assets
are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment.
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Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Carrying amount of right-of-use asset is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost
at the present value of the future lease payments. The
future lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. For a lease with
reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a
lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental
borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities have been
separately presented in the Balance Sheet. Further, lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses
whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired and also whether there is an indication
of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous
periods. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss
is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets’
fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that
generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to
sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and risk specified to the asset.
In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market
transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including
impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties
previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up
to the amount of any previous revaluation.

When the Company considers that there are no realistic
prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts
are written off. If the amount of impairment loss

XXi.

XXii.
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subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company and weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per equity share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually
issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the
outstanding equity shares).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions
(excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are
determined based on management’s estimate required
to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In
case the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible
obligations that arise from past events, whose existence
would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company. A contingent liability also
arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of
economic resources is probable.
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Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual
expenditure, classified and disclosed as estimated
amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within profit or
loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature
or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the enterprise for the period, the
nature and amount of such material items are disclosed
separately as exceptional items.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards. There
is no such notification which would have been applicable
to the Company effective 1 April 2022.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide notification
dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds received from selling items produced while
the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use (for

ITD Cementation India Limited

example, the proceeds from selling samples produced
when testing a machine to see if it is functioning properly).

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued
an amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cost
of fulfilling a contract comprises: the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an
amendment to Ind AS 103 and has added a new exception
in the standard for liabilities and contingent liabilities.

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an
amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarifies that which fees
an entity should include when it applies the ‘10%’ test in
assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An
entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the
aforementioned amendment. Based on the intial
assessment, the effect on the standalone financials
statements is expected to be insignificant.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 3 Property, plant and equipment (contd.)

3B Right-of-use-asset

T in lakhs
Land Buildings ez{ﬁgtnae“ndt Total
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2020 117.19 3,930.87 4,099.11 8,147.17
Additions/Adjustments 284.03 34.90 167.34 486.27
Disposals - (12.99) - (12.99)
As at 31 March 2021 401.22 3,952.78 4,266.45 8,620.45
Additions/Adjustments 93.73 215.08 1,605.53 1,914.34
Disposals (117.18) (349.32) (180.17) (646.67)
As at 31 March 2022 377.77 3,818.54 5,691.81 9,888.12
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2020 57.10 613.40 1,431.12 2,101.62
Depreciation charge 98.40 621.49 1,506.61 2,226.50
Accumulated depreciation on disposals - 9.11) - 9.11)
As at 31 March 2021 155.50 1,225.78 2,937.73 4,319.01
Depreciation charge 114.40 659.59 1,162.71 1,936.70
Accumulated depreciation on disposals (117.18) (222.13) (180.17) (519.48)
As at 31 March 2022 152.72 1,663.24 3,920.27 5,736.23
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 245.72 2,727.00 1,328.72 4,301.44
As at 31 March 2022 225.05 2,155.30 1,771.54 4,151.89
Note:
Refer note 40 for the disclosures related to Ind AS 116 - Leases.
3C Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule:
As at 31 March 2022
% in lakhs
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 3.50 - - - 3.50
Projects temporarily suspended (Refer note below) - - - 196.02 196.02
Total as at 31 March 2022 3.50 - - 196.02 199.52
As at 31 March 2021
T in lakhs
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 4,750.00 391.00 - - 5,141.00
Projects temporarily suspended (Refer note below) - - - 196.02 196.02
Total as at 31 March 2021 4,750.00 391.00 - 196.02 5,337.02

Note : Projects temporarily suspended represents expenses incurred for the construction of a plant depot wherein the work was suspended due
to the pending requisite approval from regulatory authorities. The requisite approvals have been received subsequent to 31 March 2022 and the
project is expected to be completed by year ending 31 March 2023.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 3 Property, plant and equipment (contd.)

3D Intangible assets - Computer software

T in lakhs
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2020 998.36
Additions 7.70
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2021 1,006.06
Additions -
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2022 1,006.06
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2020 215.97
Amortisation charge 196.60
Reversal on disposal of assets -
As at 31 March 2021 412,57
Amortisation charge 196.85
Reversal on disposal of assets -
As at 31 March 2022 609.42
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 593.49
As at 31 March 2022 396.64
NOTE 4 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a) Depreciation of tangible assets 7,357.19 5,860.97
b) Depreciation on right-of-use-asset 1,936.70 2,226.50
c) Amortisation of intangible assets 196.85 196.60
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 9,490.74 8,284.07
NOTE 5 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY AND UNINCORPORATED ENTITIES
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non - current
(i) Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary at cost 5.00 5.00
(i) Deemed investment in unincorporated entities
a) Unincorporated entities classified as subsidiaries 25,144.29 21,631.23
b) Unincorporated entities classified as joint ventures 11,285.55 19,366.26
Total non-current investments 36,434.84 41,002.49
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Note 5 Investments in subsidiary and unincorporated entities (contd.)

Note 5.1 Detailed list of non-current investments

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

(i) Investments in equity of subsidiary at cost, unquoted
ITD Cementation Projects India Limited 5.00 5.00
50,000 (31 March 2021: 50,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up
5.00 5.00
(i) Deemed investments in unincorporated entities, unquoted
a) Unincorporated entities classified as subsidiaries *
ITD Cemindia JV ~ 25,144.29 21,631.23
ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium = -
25,144.29 21,631.23
b) Unincorporated entities classified as joint ventures *
ITD - ITDCem JV A 8,780.60 18,448.23
ITD - ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD - ITD Cementation) 495.44 524.32
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV 2,009.51 393.71
11,285.55 19,366.26
Total non-current investments 36,434.84 41,002.49
* Being unincorporated entities, the Company does not require to have any investment in these entities as per the joint venture agreement.
A Receivables from unincorporated entities represent Company’s net investment in the entities.
# Includes ¥ 57.49 lakhs (31 March 2021 : ¥ 57.49 lakhs) representing fair value of financial guarantee.
Details:
Aggregate value of non-current investments is as follows:
T in lakhs
As at

As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

() Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 36,434.84 41,002.49
(i) Aggregate value of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
(i) Aggregate value of Impairment of investments - -
36,434.84 41,002.49
() Investments carried at deemed cost 36,434.84 41,002.49
(i) Investments carried at amortised cost - -
(i) Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss - -
36,434.84 41,002.49

NOTE 6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current

Security deposits 732.52 792.66
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months A 3,984.57 1,883.76
Total non-current financial assets 4,717.09 2,676.42

A held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and other commitments issued by banks on behalf of the Company
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Note 6 Other financial assets (contd.)

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Security deposits
considered good - unsecured 2,688.67 1,690.37
credit impaired 172.57 172.57
Receivable from unincorporated entities [Refer note 37(c)] - 52.33
Interest accrued on deposits 155.30 171.21
Employee advances 8.87 57.79
3,025.41 2,144.27
Less: Impairment allowance (172.57) (172.57)
Total current financial assets 2,852.84 1,971.70
Total other financial assets 7,569.93 4,648.12
NOTE 7 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
i. The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:
T in lakhs
As at

As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

a) Income tax assets 14,076.60 13,836.05
b) Current income tax liabilities (4,533.84) (8,831.37)
Net income tax assets 9,542.76 5,004.68
ii. The gross movement in the current tax asset:
T in lakhs
As at

As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Net current income tax assets at the beginning 5,004.68 1,946.78
Interest on income tax refund 6.67 18.39
Income tax paid (net) 6,012.91 3,5616.92
Current income tax expense (1,481.50) (477.41)
Net current income tax assets at the end 9,542.76 5,004.68
iii. Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

T in lakhs

Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current income taxes 1,481.50 477.41
Deferred income tax credit (159.77) (127.43)
Income tax expenses in Statement of Profit and Loss (net) 1,321.73 349.98
Deferred income tax charge in Other Comprehensive Income 67.21 50.31
Income tax expenses (net) 1,388.94 400.29
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Note 7 Income tax assets (net) (contd.)

iv. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate

to the profit before income taxes is as below:

T in lakhs

Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit before income tax 8,203.14 1,925.91
Applicable income tax rate 2517% 2517%
Computed expected tax expense 2,064.57 484.71
Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose (5.75) 80.53
Effect of income not considered for tax purpose 195.96 (224.03)
Tax adjustments for earlier years (933.05) -
Effect of difference in tax rate in overseas branch - 8.77
Income tax expense charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 1,321.73 349.98

v. Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of temporary differences are:

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred income tax asset
(a) Deferred tax assets
Impairment allowance of financial assets 1,549.52 1,335.12
Expenses allowable on payment basis 1,469.23 1,520.35
Other temporary differences 100.25 140.93
3,119.00 2,996.40
(b) Deferred tax liability
Timing difference on depreciation and amortisation of tangible and intangible assets 2,512.60 2,482.56
2,512.60 2,482.56
Deferred tax assets (net) [a-b] 606.40 513.84
vi. Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
2 in lakhs
Timing difference
Impairment Expenses Other on depreciation
allowance of allowable on temporary and amortisation Total
financial assets payment basis differences of tangible and
intangible assets
At 1 April 2020 1,020.01 1,579.38 126.35 (2,289.02) 436.72
(Charged) / credited
- to profit or loss 315.11 8.72) 14.58 (193.54) 127.43
- to other comprehensive income - (50.31) - - (50.31)
As at 31 March 2021 1,335.12 1,520.35 140.93 (2,482.56) 513.84
(Charged) / credited
- to profit or loss 214.40 16.09 (40.68) (30.04) 159.77
- to other comprehensive income - (67.21) - - (67.21)
As at 31 March 2022 1,549.52 1,469.23 100.25 (2,512.60) 606.40
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NOTE 8 OTHER ASSETS

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

Non-current
Capital advances 937.98 1,311.64
Balances with government authorities 4,805.61 4,257.84
Prepaid expenses 1,105.02 -
Total other non-current assets 6,848.61 5,569.48
Current
Advance to suppliers and subcontractors 5,687.79 3,535.65
Balances with government authorities 8,494.48 8,386.22
Prepaid expenses 2,365.63 2,766.24
Total other current assets 16,547.90 14,688.11
Total other assets 23,396.51 20,257.59
NOTE 9 INVENTORIES

T in lakhs

As at

As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Construction materials 31,300.40 24,583.41
Spares 3,621.39 2,544.73
Total inventories 34,921.79 27,128.14
NOTE 10 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
T in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
AVR Infra Private Limited 0.26 0.26
2,600 (31 March 2021: 2,600) equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid
Less: impairment allowance (0.26) (0.26)
Total current investments - -
NOTE 11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

T in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade receivables 59,472.57 48,132.51
[Includes retention ¥ 35,316.14 lakhs (31 March 2021 : ¥ 24,637.85 lakhs)]

Total trade receivables 59,472.57 48,132.51
Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considered good - secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 59,472.57 48,132.51
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (Refer note 38) - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired 4,279.49 4,073.32
Total 63,752.06 52,205.83
Less: Impairment allowance (4,279.49) (4,073.32)
Total trade receivables 59,472.57 48,132.51
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Note 11 Trade receivables (contd.)

Notes:

(i) There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Company, either severally or jointly with any other person, or from any
firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days, except retention deposit which are due after completion
of defect liability period of the respective projects.

(ili) Trade receivable aging schedule:

As at 31 March 2022

% in lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Not due Iéersnsomﬁg o rt‘f;:; 1-2years  2-3 Years Mor;;;haarz o
() Undisputed trade receivables- considered good |30,331.14 |21,294.88 | 1,154.85 | 2,612.54 944.68 | 1,885.14 58,223.23
(i) Undisputed trade receivables which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(iiiy Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 189.65 133.14 12.13 16.33 40.24 | 2,596.04 2,987.53
(iv) Disputed trade receivables-considered good 0.07 347.97 3.65 246.46 172.72 478.47 1,249.34
(v) Disputed trade receivables which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - 2.18 0.02 1.54 1.08 | 1,287.14 1,291.96
Total as at 31 March 2022 30,520.86 | 21,778.17 | 1,170.65 | 2,876.87 | 1,158.72 | 6,246.79 63,752.06
As at 31 March 2021
T in lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Not due I_Gersnsot:tfmz 6 r:o;;hasr 1-2years  2-3 Years Moraet);haarr; Total
() Undisputed trade receivables- considered good 20,690.15 21,674.24 1,127.01 2,942.95 366.64 332.08 47,133.07
(i) Undisputed trade receivables which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 141.14 158.45 7.69 293.01 121.13 2,168.46 2,889.88
(iv) Disputed trade receivables-considered good 99.15 695.76 - 12.33 79.54 112.66 999.44
(v) Disputed trade receivables which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired 0.68 4.75 - 498.16 145.54 534.31 1,183.44
Total as at 31 March 2021 20,931.12 22,533.20 1,134.70 3,746.45 712.85 3,147.51 52,205.83
NOTE 12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance with banks;
- in current accounts 28,486.37 8,055.33
- in deposit accounts with original maturity upto 3 months 450.00 -
Cash on hand 45.46 46.29
Total cash and cash equivalents 28,981.83 8,101.62
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NOTE 13 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

Bank deposits with maturity of less than 12 months - 51.20
Earmarked balances with banks for:
- bank deposits held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and other 8,480.32 6,683.61
commitments issued by banks on behalf of the Company
- Balances with bank for unclaimed dividend (Refer note 13.1 below) 9.00 9.13
Total bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 8,489.32 6,743.94

Note 13.1 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at each

reporting period.

NOTE 14 LOANS

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Loan to subsidiary 34.84 34.84
Less: Impairment allowance (34.84) -
- 34.84
Break-up of security details
Loans considered good - secured - -
Loans considered good - unsecured - 34.84
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Loans - credit impaired 34.84 -
Notes:
() Loans or advances to specified persons
T in lakhs

Typer of Borrower

Promoters

Amount of loan
or advance in the

nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the

total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of loans

Directors

Key managerial personnel

Related Parties 34.84 100%
Total 34.84 100%
(i) Information on details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act.
(@) Details of investments made are given in note 5
(b) Details of loans given by the Company are given in notes 14
(c) Details of guarantees issued by the Company are as follows:
T in lakhs
Guarantees outstanding, given on behalf of Purpose As at 31 M;(;g:'
ITD-ITD Cem JV For Bank credit facilities 6,362.50 7,742.50
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV (Fund & Non fund based) 3,091.20 6,267.00
ITD Cemindia JV 16,852.00 15,891.64
Total 26,305.70 29,901.14
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NOTE 15 UNBILLED WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CONTRACT ASSETS)

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

Unbilled work-in-progress 66,289.40 66,710.15
Less: impairment allowance (1,704.66) (1,058.96)
64,584.74 65,651.19

NOTE 16 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
% in lakhs
As at

As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Authorised share capital
300,000,000 Equity shares of % 1 each 3,000.00 3,000.00
(81 March 2021: 300,000,000)
45,000,000 Redeemable preference shares of ¥ 10 each 4,500.00 4,500.00
(81 March 2021: 45,000,000)
Total authorised share capital 7,500.00 7,500.00
Issued equity share capital:
171,812,844 Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 1,718.13 1,718.13
(81 March 2021:171,812,844)
Total issued equity share capital 1,718.13 1,718.13
Subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital:
171,787,584 Equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid up 1,717.88 1,717.88
(81 March 2021:171,787,584)
Total subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 1,717.88 1,717.88
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Number T lakhs
As at 1 April 2020 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2022 17,17,87,584 1,717.88

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 1 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed if any by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim

dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

c. Shares held by parent company

Equity shares of 3 1 each

As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares

% held

As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares

% held

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited, Thailand

8,01,13,180

46.64%

8,01,13,180

46.64%
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Note 16 Equity Share capital (contd.)

d. Shareholding of more than 5%:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Name of the Shareholder
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited, Thailand 8,01,13,180 46.64% 8,01,13,180 46.64%
Franklin India Focused Equity Fund 1,71,00,000 9.95% 1,71,00,000 9.95%
Massachusetts Institute of Technology 1,15,86,000 6.74% 1,15,86,000 6.74%
Nippon Life India Trustee Limited = = 1,12,19,299 6.53%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of
shares.

e. Shareholding of promoters:

Sr , No. of shares as at | No. of shares Asat % change during
No Promoter’s Name 31 March 2022 % of total shares 31 March 2021 % of total shares year

8,01,13,180 46.64% 8,01,13,180 46.64% -

1 ltalian-Thai Development Public
Company Limited, Thailand

f. Bonus shares/ buy back/shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years:

() Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received
in cash - Nil

(i) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil
(i) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - Nil

g. Out of the total issued capital, 25,260 (31 March 2021: 25,260) equity shares of 1 each have been kept in abeyance pending
final settlement of rights issues.

h. The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended equity dividend of ¥ 0.45 per share (31 March 2021: % 0.12 per
share) for the year ended 31 March 2022. (Refer note 43)

NOTE 17 BORROWINGS
% in lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current portion:
Secured

Rupee Term loans

From Banks (Refer note 17.1) 6,384.11 7,508.47
Plant loans

From Banks (Refer note 17.2) 2,351.87 1,187.54
Total non-current borrowings 8,735.98 8,696.01
Current maturities of long-term debts
Secured
Rupee Term loans

From Banks (Refer note 17.1) 2,5624.21 919.85
Plant loans

From Banks (Refer note 17.2) 1,177.94 966.29
Total current maturities of long-term debts 3,702.15 1,886.14
Total borrowings 12,438.13 10,582.15
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Note 17 Borrowings (contd.)

Terms of repayment and details of security

Loans obtained for capital expenses including reimbursement of expenses carry an interest rate linked to 1 year MCLR currently
ranging from 9.15% to 9.20% (31 March 2021 : 9.55% p.a.) are repayable in 14 quarterly installments. This loan is secured with
exclusive charge on an immovable property of the Company.

Loan obtained under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme 2.0 (‘ECLGS’) for general corporate/long term working capital
purposes carry interest rates ranging from 7.50% to 9.25% (31 March 2021 : 7.50% to 9.25% p.a.) for a period of 60 months
including moratorium period of 12 months and thereafter repayable in 48 monthly installments. These loans are secured by
second pari passu charge on the current assets and movable plant and machinery, other than those charged in favour of Plant
loans. The entire facility under ECLGS is also covered by way of 100% guarantee cover available from National Credit Guarantee
Trustee Company Limited (NCGTC).

Loans obtained for purchase of construction equipment carry interest rates ranging from 7.25% p.a. to 9.50% p.a. (31 March
2021 : 7.65% p.a. to 9.50% p.a.) and balance outstanding as on 31 March 2022 are repayable in 1 to 55 monthly balance
installments. These loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on specific equipment financed by the banks.. “

An analysis of net debts and the movement in net debts for each of the reporting period is as follows:

T in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

Non-current borrowings (includes accrued interest) 12,473.28 10,610.23
Current borrowings (includes accrued interest) 39,119.95 29,095.54
Cash and cash equivalents (28,981.83) (8,101.62)
Net debts 22,611.40 31,604.15

T in lakhs
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Cash and Cash Non-cur.rent Current borrowings Total
equivalents borrowings

Net debt as at 1 April 2020 (18,833.07) 2,983.71 28,219.66 12,370.30
Cash flows (net) 10,731.45 7,607.24 902.67 19,241.36
Interest expense - 327.33 3,668.83 3,996.16
Interest paid - (308.05) (8,695.62) (4,003.67)
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 (8,101.62) 10,610.23 29,095.54 31,604.15
Cash flows (net) (20,880.21) 1,855.98 9,991.56 (9,032.67)
Interest expense - 981.23 4,147.10 5,128.33
Interest paid - (974.16) (4,114.25) (5,088.41)
Net debt as at 31 March 2022 (28,981.83) 12,473.28 39,119.95 22,611.40
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Note 17 Borrowings (contd.)

Note 17.4: Details of stock statement submitted to banks where borrowings have been availed based on security of
current assets and a reconciliation thereof to books of accounts

T in lakhs
. Amounts Reason for material
Name of Banks Quarter Ended Particulars Disclosed as per  As per books of Difference variances
statement accounts
IDBI Bank, 31 December 2021 Inventory 34,004.90 34,004.90 -
Indian Bank, Trade Receivables 65,314.17 62,614.59 2,699.58 Refer Note 17.4.1 below
Bank of Baroda, Work-in-progress 81,342.50 81,342.50 -
Union Bank of India, 30 September 2021  Inventory 32,814.95 32,814.95 -
Federal Bank, Trade Receivables 60,642.88 56,740.10 3,902.78 Refer Note 17.4.1 below
Axis Bank, Work-in-progress 78,843.81 78,843.81 -
Punjab National 30 June 2021 Inventory 29,594.05 29,594.05 -
Bank, Trade Receivables 55,012.98 52,120.25 2,892.73 Refer Note 17.4.1 below
Central Bank of Work-in-progress 78,610.13 78,610.13 -
India, 31 March 2021 Inventory 27,006.06 27,128.14 (122.08)
Bank of India - Refer Note 17.4.2 below
" Work-in-progress 66,494.81 65,651.19 843.62
S:gizcviﬁt"a'” Trade Receivables 57,873.98 5220583  5,668.15 Refer Note 17.4.1 below
IDFC First Bank, 31 December 2020  Inventory 24,981.11 24,981.11 -
Exim Bank, Trade Receivables 47,830.37 45,270.21 2,560.16 Refer Note 17.4.1 below
Bank of Work-in-progress 74,282.27 74,282.27 -
Maharashtra, 30 September 2020  Inventory 23,096.46 23,096.46 -
Canara Bank, Trade Receivables 41,590.06 39,473.72 2,116.34 Refer Note 17.4.1 below
Indusind Bank Work-in-progress 65,175.80 65,175.80 -
30 June 2020 Inventory 21,993.83 21,993.83 -
Trade Receivables 41,858.66 37,155.85 4,702.81 Refer Note 17.4.1 below
Work-in-progress 58,245.32 58,245.32 -

Notes:

Note 17.4.1: Difference is on account of income tax deduced at source (‘TDS’) by clients from running account bills and considered as trade receivables
pending receipt of TDS certificate for the purposes of submission of quarterly statements to banks.

Note 17.4.2: Difference is on account of submissions of quarterly statements being made before financial reporting closure process.

Note 17.4.3: The statement for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 was not submitted as at date of the financial statements. Accordingly, disclosure
thereof has not been included above.

NOTE 18 LEASE LIABILITIES

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

Non-current 3,174.88 2,924.60
Current 1,362.35 1,921.37
Total lease liabilities 4,537.23 4,845.97

Note:

Refer note 40 for the disclosures related to Ind AS 116 - Leases
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NOTE 19 PROVISIONS
T in lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 35)

- Gratuity 1,792.39 2,050.06

- Leave entitlement and compensated absences 1,919.00 1,963.65
Total non-current provisions 3,711.39 4,013.71
Current

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 35)

- Gratuity 841.84 826.88
- Leave entitlement and compensated absences 249.47 222.56
Total current provisions 1,091.31 1,049.44
Total provisions 4,802.70 5063.15

NOTE 20 CURRENT BORROWINGS

% in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Current maturities of long-term debts (Refer note 17) 3,702.15 1,886.14
Other loans:
- Cash credit facilities, repayable on demand (Refer note 20.1) 5,940.44 1,276.37
- Working capital demand loans, repayable on demand (Refer note 20.2) 28,641.00 24,892.83
- Bill discounting (Refer note 20.3) 946.83 -
35,528.27 26,169.20
Unsecured
- Bill discounting (Refer note 20.4) 3,544.22 2,911.73
3,544.22 2,911.73
Total current borrowings 42,774.64 30,967.07

Note 20.1 Cash credit facilities (secured) :

Cash credit facilities availed from consortium bankers carry effective interest rates ranging from 7.95% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. (31
March 2021: 8.65% p.a. to 11.80% p.a.) and are secured by first pari passu charge on the current assets and movable plant
and machinery (other than those charged in favour of Plant loans). These facilities are repayable on demand.

Note 20.2 Working capital demand loans (secured) :

Working capital demand loans carry effective interest rates ranging from 7.80% p.a. to 10.55% p.a. (31 March 2021 : 8.20 %
p.a. to 12.15% p.a.) and are secured by first pari passu charge on the current assets and movable plant and machinery (other
than those charged in favour of Plant loans). These facilities are repayable on demand.

Note 20.3 Bill discounting (secured) :

Bill discounting facilities carry interest rate of 8.95% p.a. (31 March 2021: Nil) and are secured by first pari passu charge on
the current assets and movable plant and machinery (other than those charged in favour of Plant loans). These are repayable
between 30 - 180 days from the date of discounting/ date of invoice.

Note 20.4 Bill discounting (unsecured) :

Bill discounting facilities carry interest rate of 8.35% p.a. (31 March 2021: 8.35% p.a.) and are repayable upto 90 days from the
date of discounting/ date of invoice.
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 21 TRADE PAYABLES

T in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 21.1) 4,123.13 1,416.18
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 68,712.04 52,328.36
Total trade payables 72,835.17 53,744.54

Note 21.1 : Dues to Micro and Small Enterprise

The dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
to the extent information available with the Company is given below:

As at
31 March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of
year:

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

4,123.13

1,416.18

- Interest due

82.76

3.96

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the
accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

50.35

49.39

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

133.11

50.35

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

133.11

50.35

Note 21.2 : Trade payables are normally non-interest bearing and settled as per the payments terms stated in the contract.

Note 21.3: Trade Payable ageing schedule

T lakhs
one year years

() MSME - 3,846.75 194.95 68.29 13.14 4,123.13
(i) Others 15,325.10 44,303.38 4,645.47 2,034.85 2,403.24 68,712.04
(i) Disputed dues- MSME = = = = = =
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -
Total as at 31 March 2022 15,325.10 48,150.13 4,840.42 2,103.14 2,416.38 72,835.17

% lakhs
Particulars Unbilled Dues L(()e: ;r;r: 1-2 Years 2-3 years More tgggrz Total
() MSME
(i) Others - 1,313.53 88.44 8.13 6.08 1,416.18
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME 16,209.88 30,664.72 2,401.19 1,806.62 1,245.95 52,328.36
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -
Total as at 31 March 2021 16,209.88 31,978.25 2,489.63 1,814.75 1,252.03 53,744.54
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 22 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Interest accrued but not due 1,223.87 1,073.77
Interest accrued and due (Refer note 21.1) 133.11 50.35
Amount due to related parties 936.16 351.93
Liability for capital goods 560.03 2,061.46
Employee related dues 3,246.51 3,021.79
Foreign currency forward contract 0.58 2.00
Unpaid dividends ~ 9.00 9.13
Others 25414 92.55
Total current other financial liabilities 6,363.40 6,662.98
" Not due for credit to Investor Education and Protection Fund
NOTE 23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Advances from contractees 55,028.01 47,139.49
Due to customer 24,932.92 21,645.14
Statutory dues payable 1,229.01 935.77
Others 241.75 186.59
Total other current liabilities 81,431.69 69,906.99
NOTE 24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
T in lakhs
Year ended

Year ended
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Contract revenue 3,19,527.42 2,15,308.67
Other operating revenues
Service income:
- from related paries [Refer note 37(b)] 648.34 951.02
- from others 23.16 -
Share of profit from unincorporated entities [Refer note 37(b)] 4,753.81 3,723.98
Provision no longer required written back - 848.21
Total revenue from operations 3,24,952.73 2,20,831.88

Note: Refer note 37(b) for transaction with Related Parties
Contracts with Customers.
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TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 25 OTHER INCOME

Year ended
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
Year ended

31 March 2021

Interest income
- on bank deposits 310.33 361.67
- on financial assets carried at amortised cost 74.43 82.98
- on income tax refund 6.67 18.39
- on sales tax refund - 105.43
- others 0.04 6.04
391.47 574.51
Other non-operating income
- Insurance claim 357.06 6.49
- Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 91.11 233.10
- Miscellaneous income 24.29 42.58
472.46 282.17
Total other income 863.93 856.68
NOTE 26 COST OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS CONSUMED
T in lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Stock at beginning of the year 24,583.41 17,640.54
Add: Purchases 1,17,854.41 71,290.88
Less: sale of scrap and unserviceable material (2,114.00) (810.01)
1,40,323.82 88,121.41
Less: Stock at the end of the year (31,300.40) (24,583.41)
Total cost of construction materials consumed 1,09,023.42 63,538.00
NOTE 27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
T in lakhs
Year ended

Year ended
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Salaries and wages 31,346.14 27,096.66
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 35) 2,832.00 2,338.32
Gratuity (Refer note 35) 645.22 666.98
Staff welfare 67.44 29.62
Total employee benefits expense 34,890.80 30,131.58
NOTE 28 FINANCE COSTS
T in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest expense on:
- on banks and financial institutions 5,128.33 3,996.16
- on advances from contractees 3,190.50 2,884.22
- on others 649.26 426.17
8,968.09 7,306.55
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 40) 490.38 667.74
Other borrowing costs
- Bank charges and guarantee commission * 3,782.50 3,159.39
Total finance costs 13,240.97 11,133.68

*The Company pays commission on bank guarantees on quarterly, yearly or upfront basis depending on the terms of sanction of Banks. Accordingly,
Company makes the BG commission payment to Banks as and when due for the unexpired BG on case to case basis as per sanction terms.
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TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 29 OTHER EXPENSES

Year ended
31 March 2022

T in lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2021

Plant hire expenses (Refer note 40) 20,870.20 12,140.76
Power and fuel 16,150.60 7,499.10
Rates and taxes 3,592.00 3,404.60
Travelling expenses 548.67 560.96
Site transport and conveyance 5,063.55 3,464.49
Repairs and maintenance:
- Plant and machinery 910.17 861.04
- Others 235.47 219.21
Insurance 3,230.15 2,813.30
Professional fees 2,711.77 2,506.74
Rent (Refer note 40) 2,662.87 2,302.72
Share of loss from unincorporated entities (net) 5,606.86 2,916.83
Consumption of spares 3,196.05 1,548.36
Security charges 1,042.92 872.22
Temporary site installations 443.24 382.54
Postage, telephone and telegram 109.09 104.55
Auditor remuneration (Refer note 29.1) 101.16 102.54
Impairment allowance on financial and other assets (net) 851.87 1,252.03
Water charges 458.12 414.21
Printing and stationery 181.46 107.96
Infotech expenses 723.97 935.73
Royalty expense 1,597.64 1,076.54
Exchange loss (net) 432.86 7.32
Directors’ sitting fees 30.90 37.40
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses (Refer note 29.2) 123.85 215.18
Miscellaneous expenses 2052.52 1,659.41
Total other expenses 72,927.96 47,405.74
Note 29.1: Auditor Remuneration
T in lakhs
Year ended

Year ended
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

- Audit fees (including tax audit) 63.00 68.00
- Limited review 19.00 20.00
- Certification fees 16.76 13.78
- Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 2.40 0.76

101.16 102.54

Note 29.2: CSR expenditure

As per the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 every year the Company is required to spend at least 2% of its average
net profit made during the immediately three preceding financial years on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities.
Following is the information regarding projects undertaken and expenses incurred on CSR activities.

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022: % 123.85 lakhs (31 March 2021:
¥ 190.18 lakhs)
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 29 Other expenses (contd.)

b. Amount spent during the year on CSR activities: ¥ 123.85 lakhs (31 March 2021: % 215.18 lakhs) the details of which is as

given below:
3 lakhs
Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
In cash Yetto l_)e paid Total
in cash in cash
Construction/acquisition of any = = = 45.18 - 45.18
asset
On purposes other than above 123.85 - 123.85 170.00 - 170.00
Total CSR expenditure 123.85 - 123.85 215.18* - 215.18*

*This expenditure includes an unspent amount of Rs 25 Lakh pertaining to the FY 2019-20, which was spent in the FY 2020-21.

Amount of shortfall at the end of the year ended 31 March 2022 out of the amount required to be spent during the year : Nil

c
d. Total of previous years’ shortfall : Nil
e. Reason for shortfalls : NA

f.

Nature of CSR activities undertaken : Education, Health care, Rural development and Covid 19 relief activities.

NOTE 30 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Basic and diluted EPS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit computation for basic earnings per share of ¥ 1 each

Net profit as per the Statement of Profit and Loss available for equity shareholders  lakhs) 6,881.41 1,575.93

Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS computation (Nos.) 17,17,87,584 17,17,87,584

EPS - Basic ® 4.01 0.92
- Diluted ® 4.01 0.92

NOTE 31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
A. Contingent liabilities

% in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

() Guarantees given by banks in respect of contracting commitments in the normal course of

business

- for the Company 25,220.01 18,744.56
- for unincorporated entities 38,369.02 46,896.30
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (Refer notes below) 21,807.20 17,738.20
(i) Sales Tax/ Value Added Tax ('VAT') matters pending in appeals 4,558.86 4,643.54
(iv) Income Tax matters pending in appeals 651.87 651.87
(v) Excise duty and service tax matters pending in appeals 3,743.91 3,795.61

(vi) Provident Fund

Based on the judgement by the Honorable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is not
determinable at present, in view of uncertainty on the applicability of the judgement to the Company with respect to
timing and the components of its compensation structure. In absence of further clarification, the Company has been
legally advised to await further developments in this matter to reasonably assess the implications on its financial
statements, if any.
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Note 31 Contingent liabilities and commitments (contd.)

Notes-

(i) The Company has a number of claims on customers for price escalation and / or variation in contract work. In certain
cases which are currently under arbitration, the customers have raised counter-claims. The Company has received
legal advice that none of the counter-claims are legally tenable. Accordingly no provision is considered necessary in
respect of these counter claims.

(i) Itis not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the respective proceedings. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above
contingent liabilities other than stated therein above. Future cash outflows in respect of the above are determinable
only on receipt of judgments/ decisions pending with various forums/ authorities. The Company does not expect any
outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof.

B. Commitments

¥ in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

() Guarantees given on behalf of and letter of credit utilised by unincorporated entities 27,218.22 31,259.63
(i) Other commitments (net of advances) 21,355.39 4,691.11

The Company'’s trade receivables and unbilled work-in-progress as at 31 March 2022 include amount aggregating ¥ 813.05
lakhs and ¥ 2,510.61 lakhs, respectively, which represent various receivables/ claims which have been raised based on the
terms and conditions implicit in the contracts of certain completed/ nearing completion projects. These receivables/ claims are
mainly in respect of cost over-run arising due to client caused delays, suspension of projects, deviation in design and change
in scope of work; for which Company is at various stages of negotiations/ discussions/ arbitration/ litigation with the clients.
Considering the contractual tenability, progress of negotiations/ discussions/arbitration/ litigations and as legally advised in
certain contentious matters, the management is confident of recovery of these receivables.

The Company’s managing director who is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Company, examines the
performance of the business and allocates funds on the basis of a single reportable segment i.e. ‘Construction’. Further, the
Company has operations mainly in India and has no other reportable segment.

Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment liability, total
cost incurred to acquire segment assets and total amount of charge for depreciation during the period, is as reflected in the
Standalone Financial Statements as on and for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

Unincorporated entities (Joint Ventures)

P ti f effective int t ioti inci
Name of the entity [OPOron o o eCive IMeTesT !Jescrlptlon of Prlnclpal place Principal activities
31 March 2021 interest of Business

ITD - ITD Cem JV 49% 49% Co-venturer India Construction

ITD - ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD - 40% 40% Co-venturer India Construction

ITD Cementation)

CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV 60% A 60% ~ Co-venturer India Construction

ITD Cem - BBJ JV 51% 51% Co-venturer India Construction

A Though the Company’s effective interest in the joint venture exceeds 50%, the entity has been classified as a joint venture. The management has
assessed whether or not the Company has control over the entity based on whether the Company has practical ability to direct relevant activities
unilaterally. In this case, based on specific joint venture agreement, the management concluded that the Company does not have practical ability to
direct the relevant activities unilaterally but has such ability along with the other co-venturer.
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 35 DISCLOSURE RELATING TO EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AS PER IND AS 19 ‘EMPLOYEE BENEFITS’
Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employee who has completed five
years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service
and salary at retirement age.

A

31 March 2022

T in lakhs

31 March 2021

a) Changes in defined benefit obligations
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 5,834.18 5,506.30
Interest cost (net) 399.64 376.08
Current service cost 448.15 461.40
Remeasurements - Net actuarial gains (282.74) (16.89)
Benefits paid from the fund (595.29) (492.71)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 5,803.94 5,834.18
b) Changes in fair value of plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 2,957.24 2,496.45
Interest income 202.57 170.50
Contribution by employer 620.87 600.00
Benefits paid from the fund (595.29) (492.71)
(Loss) / Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) (15.68) 183.00
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 3,169.71 2,957.24
c) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Interest cost (net) 197.07 205.58
Current service cost 448.15 461.40
Total 645.22 666.98
d) Remeasurement (gains)/losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gains on obligation for the period (282.74) (16.89)
Loss / (gains) on plan assets 15.68 (183.00)
Total (267.06) (199.89)
e) Actuarial assumptions
Expected rate on plan assets 7.23% p.a. 6.85% p.a.
Discount rate 7.23% p.a. 6.85% p.a.
Salary escalation rate (over a long-term) 5.50% p.a. 5.50% p.a.
Mortality rate Indian assured Indian assured
lives mortality lives mortality

2012-14 Urban

(2006-08) Ultimate

Attrition rate :

- For ages 44 years and below

5.00% p.a.

5.00% p.a.

- For ages 45 years and above

2.50% p.a.

2.50% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Note 35 Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (contd.)

132

f) Quantities sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the
valuation of the defined benefit obligation, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. The significant actuarial
assumptions are discount rate and salary escalation rate.

The methods and type of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to previous year.

T in lakhs
31 March 2021
1% increase

i. Discount rate (875.07) (387.64)

ii. Salary escalation rate 436.62 451.57
1% decrease

i. Discount rate 433.42 449.98

ii. Salary escalation rate (384.19) (395.73)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual charge in the defined benefit obligation as
it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as the assumptions may be correlated.

g) Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation

T in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

Within the next 12 months 688.70 748.67
Between 2 and 5 years 838.10 840.48
6 to 10 years 802.63 816.00

Defined benefit obligations - Provident Fund

In accordance with Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952, all eligible employees of the Company are
entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund plan in which both the employee and employer (at a determined rate)
contribute monthly to “ITD Cementation India Limited Workmen Provident Fund”, a Trust set up by the Company to manage
the investments and distribute the amounts to employees at the time of separation from the Company or retirement,
whichever is earlier. This plan is a defined plan as the Company is obligated to provide its members a rate of return which
should, at a minimum, meet the interest rate declared by Government administered provident fund. A part of the Company’s
contribution is transferred to Government administered pension fund. The contributions made by the Company and the
shortfall of interest, if any, are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under “Employee benefits
expense”.

In accordance with an actuarial valuation of provident fund liabilities on the basis of guidance issued by Actuarial Society
of India and based on the assumptions as mentioned below, there is no deficiency in the interest cost as the present value
of the expected future earnings of the fund is greater than the expected amount to be credited to the individual members
based on the expected guaranteed rate of interest of Government administered provident fund.

The details of fund and plan assets are given below:

% in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

Fair value of plan assets 36,658.00 32,571.55
Present value of defined benefit obligations 35,188.00 31,262.77
Net excess 1,470.00 1,308.78

The plan assets have been primarily invested in Government securities and corporate bonds.
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Note 35 Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (contd.)

The principal assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of interest guarantee under the deterministic
approach are as follows:

T in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate 7.23% p.a. 6.85% p.a.
Guaranteed rate of return 8.10% p.a. 8.50% p.a.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has contributed % 1,725.16 lakhs (31 March 2021: % 1,439.89 lakhs)

C Defined contribution plans
T in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a) The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Contribution to superannuation fund 1,106.84 898.43

b) The expenses for leave entitlement and compensated absences is recognized in the same manner as gratuity and
provision of ¥ 185.27 lakhs ( 31 March 2021: % 239.52 lakhs) has been made during the year ended 31 March 2022.

D Current/ non-current classification

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gratuity

Current 841.84 826.88
Non-current 1,792.39 2,050.06
2,634.23 2,876.94

Leave entitlement and compensated absences
Current 249.47 222.56
Non-current 1,919.00 1,963.65
2,168.47 2,186.21

NOTE 36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of the financial assets are included at amounts at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

(@) Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities,
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

(b) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such
as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to
account for the expected losses of these receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 36 Financial instruments (contd.)

A Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2022 were as follows:

T in lakhs
Fair value Derivative
Income relationship
Assets:
Other financial assets 6 7,569.93 - - - 7,569.93
Trade receivables 11 59,472.57 - - - 59,472.57
Cash and cash equivalents 12 28,981.83 - - - 28,981.83
Bank balances other than 13 8,489.32 - - - 8,489.32
cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities:
Borrowings 17,20 51,510.62 - - - 51,510.62
Lease liabilities 18 4,537.23 - - - 4,537.23
Trade payables 21 72,835.17 - - - 72,835.17
Other financial liabilities 22 6,362.82 - - 0.58 6,363.40

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2021 were as follows:

T in lakhs
Fair value Derivative
Income relationship
Assets:
Other financial assets 6 4,648.12 - - - 4,648.12
Trade receivables 1" 48,132.51 - - - 48,132.51
Cash and cash equivalents 12 8,101.62 - - - 8,101.62
Bank balances other than 13 6,743.94 - - - 6,743.94
cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities:
Borrowings 17,20 39,663.08 - - - 39,663.08
Lease liabilities 18 4,845.97 - - - 4,845.97
Trade payables 21 53,744.54 - - - 53,744.54
Other financial liabilities 22 6,660.98 - - 2.00 6,662.98

B Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at each
reporting period:

% in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars

Level 1 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Foreign currency forward contract liability - (0.58) - - (2.00) -
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NOTE 37 DISCLOSURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 24 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
A) Names of related parties and description of relationship
a) Enterprise where control exists
i) Parent Company
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited
ii) Subsidiary Company
ITD Cementation Projects India Limited

b) Other related parties with whom the Company had transactions
i)  Unincorporated entities - treated as subsidiary
ITD Cemindia JV

ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium

ii) Unincorporated entities - treated as joint venture
ITD - ITD Cem JV

ITD - ITD Cem JV (Consortium of ITD - ITD Cementation)
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV
ITD Cem - BBJ JV

iiij Key managerial personnel (‘KMP’)
Mr. Piyachai Karnasuta - Chairman

Mr. Santi Jongkongka - Executive Vice Chairman

Mr. Jayanta Basu - Managing Director

Mr. Sunil Shah Singh - Independent Director

Mr. D.P. Roy - Independent Director (upto 5 August 2021)
Mr. Pankaj I.C. Jain - Independent Director

Ms. Ramola Mahajani - Independent Director

Mr. Prasad Patwardhan — Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Rahul Neogi - Company Secretary

B) Transactions with related parties (excluding reimbursements):
% in lakhs

Nature of Transactions Relationship 31 Jgféfgggg 31 I\\I(IZ?;P?;SZ?

Contract Revenue

CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 138.92 2,500.03
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 6,987.02 1,435.36
7,125.94 3,935.39

Royalty expense
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited Parent Company 1,597.64 1,076.54

Service income

ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 635.94 851.40
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 12.40 99.62
648.34 951.02
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Note 37 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (contd.)

Nature of Transactions

Relationship

Year ended
31 March 2022

% in lakhs
Year ended

31 March 2021

Share of profit from unincorporated entities
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 2,892.90 2,651.55
ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 1,426.07 374.47
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 434.84 697.96
4,753.81 3,723.98
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 447.97 1,880.00
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) - 49.69
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 1,033.12 65.67
1,481.08 1,995.36
Sale of Construction materials and spares
ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) - 6.19
Purchases of Construction materials and spares
ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 212.86 711.78
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 273.77 423.74
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 644.53 352.10
1,131.16 1,487.63
Impairment of Loan
ITD Cementation Projects India Limited Subsidiary 34.84 -
Remuneration paid/payable”
Mr. Santi Jongkongka Key managerial Personnel 233.84 217.49
Mr. Jayanta Basu Key managerial Personnel 203.48 172.58
Mr. Prasad Patwardhan Key managerial Personnel 120.73 108.25
Mr. Rahul Neogi Key managerial Personnel 69.01 64.30
627.06 562.62
A Does not include provisional gratuity liability valued by an actuary, as separate figures are not available.
Director sitting fees
Mr. Piyachai Karnasuta Key managerial Personnel 7.50 8.60
Ms. Ramola Mahajani Key managerial Personnel 6.00 6.50
Mr. Sunil Shah Singh Key managerial Personnel 7.60 8.00
Mr. Pankaj I.C. Jain Key managerial Personnel 6.90 6.60
Mr. D. P. Roy Key managerial Personnel 2.90 7.70
30.90 37.40
Share of loss from unincorporated entities
ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 5,577.98 2,871.12
ITD-ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD-ITD Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 28.88 45.71
Cementation)
5,606.86 2,916.83

Note : All the transactions have been undertaken at arm’s length price.
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Note 37 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (contd.)

C)

Outstanding balances:

Relationship

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

Balances - payable
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited Parent Company 444.25 351.93
ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 491.07 -
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 0.84 -
936.16 351.93
Deemed Investment #
ITD Cemindia JV # Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 25,144.29 21,631.23
ITD-ITDCem JV # Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 8,780.60 18,448.23
ITD-ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD-ITD Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 495.44 524.32
Cementation)
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 2,009.51 393.71
36,429.84 40,997.49
Balances - receivable
ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) - 52.28
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) - 0.05
- 52.33
Loans given
ITD Cementation Projects India Limited Subsidiary - 34.84
Trade receivable
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 56.59 354.52
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 1,242.86 686.45
1,299.45 1,040.97
Corporate guarantee issued on behalf of
ITD-ITD Cem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 6,362.50 7,742.50
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 3,091.20 6,267.00
ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 16,852.00 15,891.64
26,305.70 29,901.14
Letter of credit limit utilized
ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 912.52 1,358.49
Bank guarantee issued on behalf of
ITD Cemindia JV Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) 18,079.94 21,234.78
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 13,584.48 16,980.60
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 4,111.79 5,280.75
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 2,592.81 2,592.81
ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium Unincorporated entity (subsidiary) = 807.36
38,369.02 46,896.30

# Receivables from unincorporated entities represent Company’s net investment in the entities, have been reclassified as deemed investment

under Ind AS. (Refer note 5.1)
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NOTE 38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus
is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

138

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk. Major financial instruments affected by market risk includes loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s total debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

2 in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Increase in basis points 50 basis points
Effect on profit before tax, decrease by | 66.13 | 39.82
Decrease in basis points 50 basis points
Effect on profit before tax, increase by | 65.90 | 39.62

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

Foreign currency risk

The Company has several balances in foreign currency and consequently the Company is exposed to foreign exchange
risk. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years, which has
affected the results of the Company, and may fluctuate substantially in the future. The Company evaluates exchange rate
exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as at 31 March 2022:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
In USD lakhs In Euro lakhs In Euro lakhs
Trade payables | 0.55 || 1.44 | 0.78

During the year, to mitigate the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-INR cash flows are monitored and
forward exchange contracts are entered into in accordance with the Company’s risk management policies. Generally, the
Company’s risk management procedures distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows (due within 6 months) from
longer-term cash flows (due after 6 months).

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
In USD lakhs In Euro lakhs % lakhs In Euro lakhs % lakhs
Forward contracts | 0.55 || 1.44 || 163.89 | 0.78 68.84

The foreign exchange forward contracts mature within 12 months. The table below analyses the derivative financial
instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as of the balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

In USD lakhs In Euro lakhs In Euro lakhs
Not later than six month 0.55 1.44 0.78
Later than six month and not later than twelve months - - -
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 38 Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.)

Sensitivity analysis

The Company’s exposure in foreign currency is not material and hence the impact of any significant fluctuation in the

exchange rates is not expected to have a material impact on the operating profits of the Company.

c. Equity price risk

The Company’s exposure in equity securities as at 31 March 2022 is ¥ 5 lakhs (31 March 2021 % 5 lakhs) and as a result

the impact of any price change will not have a material effect on the profit or loss of the Company.

ii  Creditrisk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The

maximum exposure of the financial assets are contributed by trade receivables.

a Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from two main classes of trade receivables
i.e receivables from sale to government corporations and receivables from sales to private third parties. A substantial
portion of the Company’s trade receivables are from government promoted corporations customers having strong credit

worthiness.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from government promoted agencies and

others:
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
3 lakhs %  lakhs %
Receivable from government corporations 42,081.40 70.76% 34,357.31 71.38%
Receivable from private parties 17,391.17 29.24% 18,775.20 28.62%
Total trade receivable 59,472.57 100% 48,132.51 100%

b  Financial assets other than trade receivables

Financial assets other than trade receivables comprise of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loan to
employees and other financial assets. The Company monitors the credit exposure on these financial assets on a case-to-

case basis. Based on the Company’s historical experience, the credit risk on other financial assets is also low.

The following table gives details in respect of contract revenues generated from the top customer and top 5 customers

for each of the reporting period:

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars
ELGH % of Revenue % lakhs % of Revenue
Revenue from top customer 33,089.66 10.36% 30,363.04 14.10%
Revenue from top five customers 1,46,111.24 45.73% 1,08,404.90 50.35%

For the year ended 31 March 2022, One (1) customer {31 March 2021: Two (2) customers}, individually, accounted for more

than 10% of the revenue.

The movement of the allowance for lifetime expected credit loss including unbilled receivable is as below:

T in lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance 5,132.28 3,989.03
Changes in loss allowances
Additions 851.87 1,143.25
Closing balance 5,984.15 5,132.28
iii  Liquidity risk

Liquidity is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable
price. The Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In
addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the

Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.
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Note 38 Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

% in lakhs

. Less than More than

As at 31 March 2022
Borrowings 34,581.44 8,193.20 8,735.98 - 51,510.62
Trade payables - 72,835.17 - - 72,835.17
Interest accrued - 1,356.98 - - 1,356.98
Lease liabilities - 1,819.95 3,692.20 - 5,612.15
Other financial liabilities - 5,006.42 - - 5,006.42
Total 34,581.44 89,211.72 12,428.18 - 111,36,221.34
% in lakhs
Particulars On demand Les? ';Zg: 1-5years Mogeyg::z Total

As at 31 March 2021

Borrowings 26,169.20 4,797.87 8,696.01 - 39,663.08
Trade payables - 53,744.54 - - 53,744.54
Interest accrued - 1,124.12 - - 1,124.12
Lease liabilities - 2,371.04 3,527.38 139.92 6,038.34
Other financial liabilities - 5,538.86 - - 5,538.86
Total 26,169.20 67,576.43 12,223.39 139.92 1,06,108.94

NOTE 39 - DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO IND AS 115 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS:

Refer note 2(xvi)(a) for accounting policy on revenue recognition.

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

The Company'’s entire business falls under one operational segment of ‘Engineering and Construction’. Contract revenue
represents revenue from Engineering and Construction contracts wherein the performance obligation is satisfied over a
period of time. Further, the management believes that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows from all its contracts are similar. Accordingly, disclosure of revenue recognised from contracts disaggregated into

categories has not been made.

(b) Unsatisfied performance obligations

The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied as at the end of the
year is ¥ 1,439,207.14 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 985,016.55 lakhs). Most of Company’s contracts have a life cycle of 2-3 years.
Management expects that around 25% - 30 % of the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March
2022 will be recognised as revenue during next reporting period depending upon the progress on each contracts. The
remaining amounts are expected to be recognised over the next 3 years. The amount disclosed above does not include

variable consideration.

(c) Contract balances:
() Movement in contract balances during the year:

[ in lakhs)

Contract Assets (Unbilled  Contract Liabilities (Due

Particulars work-in-progress) to customers) Net Contract Balances
Balance as at 1 April 2020 51,357.01 21,091.86 30,265.15
Net increase 15,353.14 553.28 14,799.86
Balance as at 31 March 2021 66,710.15 21,645.14 45,065.01
Net increase/ (decrease) (420.75) 3,287.78 (3,708.53)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 66,289.40 24,932.92 41,356.48

Note: Decrease in contract assets is primarily due to lower revenue recognition as compared to progress billing during the year in certain
projects, whereas increase in contract liabilities is due to higher progress billing as compared to revenue recognition during the year in

certain other projects.
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Note 39 - Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: contd.)

(d)

(e)

STANDALONE

(i)  Revenue recognised during the year from opening balance of contract liabilities (i.e. due to customers) amounts to

¥ 3,499.03 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 4,893.71 lakhs).

(i) Revenue recognised during the year from the performance obligation satisfied upto previous year amounts to Nil

(31 March 2021: Nil).

There are no reconciliation items between revenue from contracts with customers and revenue recognised with contract

price.

Cost to obtain or fulfil the contract:

i.  Amount of amortisation recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year : Nil

ii.  Amount recognised as contract assets as at 31 March 2022 : Nil

Right-of-use Assets:

The net carrying value of right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2022 of ¥ 4,151.89 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 4,301.44 lakhs) have
been disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. (Also refer note 3B)

Lease liabilities:
As at 31 March 2022, the lease obligations aggregating ¥ 4,537.23 lakhs (31 March 2021: % 4,845.97 lakhs) which have

(i)

(ii)

(i)

been classified to lease liabilities on the face of the balance sheet. (Also refer note 18)

The following is the movement in lease liabilities :

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Finance cost accrued during the year
Payment of lease liabilities

Termination during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities (undiscounted) of lease liabilities:

T in lakhs

Year ended

31 March 2021

4,845.97 6,311.40
1,812.83 477.75
490.38 667.74
(2,484.75) (2,607.04)
(127.20) (3.88)
4,537.23 4,845.97
[® in lakhs)

Contractual cash flows

Lease Liabilities

Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-5years 5 years and above
As at 31 March 2022 4,537.23 5,5612.15 1,819.95 3,692.20 -
As at 31 March 2021 4,845.97 6,038.34 2,371.04 3,5627.38 139.92

The Company recognised the following in the statement of profit and loss:
T in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2021

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 1,936.70 2,226.50
Interest expense on lease liabilities included in finance cost (Refer note 28) 490.38 667.74
Rent expense pertaining to leases of low-value assets - -
Rent expense pertaining to leases with less than twelve months of lease included under plant 23,533.07 14,443.48

hire expenses and rent expenses (Refer note 29)
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NOTE 41 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company strives to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern
so that they can maximise returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stake holders. The aim to maintain an optimal
capital structure and minimise cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend payment to shareholders (if permitted). Consistent with others in the
industry, the Company monitors its capital using the gearing ratio which is total debt divided by total capital (equity).

% in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total debt 51,510.62 39,663.08
Total equity 1,13,119.63 1,06,570.93
Total debts to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 0.46 0.37

In the long run, the Company’s strategy is continue to maintain a gearing ratio of less than 0.5.

NOTE 42: DISCLOSURE OF RATIOS

Measure Asicicnelodise As at and for the
Particulars Formula for computation (In times/ year ended 31 year ended 31 % Variance Reason for variance
percentage) March 2022 March 2021
a Current Ratio Current assets / Current Times 1.05 1.05 -01% -
liabilities
b Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt / Times 0.46 0.37 22.4% -
Shareholder’s Equity
c Debt Service coverage  EBITDA / (Finance costs Times 2.01 1.66 21.4% -
Ratio + Principal repayment
of long term borrowings
within one year)
d Return on Equity Profit after tax / Average Percentage 6.26 1.49 321.0% Increased primarily on
Shareholder’s Equity account of increase in
profit after tax
e Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold / Times 3.90 3.01 29.6% Increased on account
Average inventory of better inventory
management
f  Trade receivable Contract revenue/ Times 5.94 4.57 29.9% Increased on account
turnover ratio Average gross trade of higher revenue and
receivables improved reliasation
g Trade Payable turnover  Purchases / Average Times 1.86 1.40 32.8% Higher efficiency due
ratio trade payables to working capital
optimisation
h  Net Capital turnover Revenue from Times 32.52 26.93 20.7% -
ratio operations / working
capital
i Net Profit Ratio Profit after tax Percentage 2.15 0.73 194.2% Higher profit margin
/ Revenue from attributable to increase
operations in profit after tax
and increase in total
income
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Note 42: Disclosure of ratios contd.)

Measure Aieiclehfoginst  As at and for the
Particulars Formula for computation (In times/ year ended 31 year ended 31 % Variance Reason for variance
percentage) March 2022 March 2021
j  Return on Capital EBIT / Average Capital Percentage 13.80 9.30 48.3% Increased primarily on
Employed (ROCE) employed account of increase in
net profit after tax
k  Return on Investment Profit before tax / Total ~ Percentage 2.45 0.67 264.7% Increased due to
(ROI) assets higher margin and
efficient use of assets

Notes:
1  Total Debt = Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings
Shareholder’s Equity = Paid-up share capital + Reserves created out of profit - Accumulated losses

EBITDA = Earnings before finance costs, depreciation expense and tax and exceptional items

A WO N

Cost of goods sold = Cost of materials consumed + Purchase of stock-in-trade + Changes in inventories of finished goods,
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

5  Net purchase = Purchase of stock-in-trade + Cost of materials consumed + Closing inventory of raw materials and packing
materials - Opening inventory of raw materials and packing materials

6  Working Capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

7  EBIT = Earnings before interest and tax and exceptional items
8 Capital employed = Total equity + Total Debt

NOTE 43 DIVIDEND ON EQUITY SHARES

T in lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Dividend on equity shares declared and paid during the year

Dividend of ¥ 0.12 per share for year ended 31 March 2021 206.15 515.36
(Year ended 31 March 2020: % 0.30 per share)

206.15 515.36

Proposed dividend on equity shares not recognised as liability*

Dividend of % 0.45 per share for year ended 31 March 2022 773.05 206.15
(Year ended 31 March 2021 : ¥ 0.12 per share)

773.05 206.15

*Proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting and therefore not
recognised as liability as at the Balance Sheet date.
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() The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group
for holding any Benami property.

(i) The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond
the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(x) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on the current or previous
financial year.

Previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified whereever necessary, to conform to the current period’s classification
in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013, effective 1 April 2021.

This is a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Partner Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director

Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312 DIN: 08291114
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACA No.44453 ACS No.10653

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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To the Members of

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of ITD Cementation India Limited
(‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
‘the Group’) and its joint ventures, as listed in Annexure
I, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiary and joint venture, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group and its joint ventures, as at 31 March 2022, and
their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

CONSOLIDATED

3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and its joint
ventures in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained together with the audit evidence obtained
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred
to in paragraph 15 of the Other Matter section below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment and based on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiary and joint venture, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

5.  We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recognition of contract revenue, margin and contract costs (Refer Note 2(xvii)(a) of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group’s revenue primarily arises from construction
contracts which, by its nature, is complex given the
significant judgements and estimates involved in the
assessment of current and future contractual performance
obligations.

The Group recognises revenue and the resultant profit/
loss relying on the estimates in relation to forecast
contract revenue and forecast contract costs on the basis
of stage of completion which is determined based on the
proportion of contract costs incurred at balance sheet
date, relative to the total estimated costs of the contract
at completion. The contract revenue may also include
variable considerations which are recognised when the
recovery of such consideration is highly probable.

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter included, but were not
limited to the following:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the Company’s accounting policy for
revenue recognition in line with Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers;

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s processes and evaluating the
design and testing the effectiveness of key internal financial controls around
estimation of contract revenue and contract costs;

For a sample of contracts, performed the following procedures:

- verifying the underlying documents such as contract agreement and
variation orders, if any, for reviewing the significant contract terms and
conditions;

- evaluating the identification of performance obligation of the contract;

- obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the reasonableness of the
assumptions applied in determining the forecasted revenue and cost to
complete;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

These contract estimates are reviewed by the management
on a periodic basis. In doing so, the management
exercises judgement with respect to the completeness
and accuracy of forecast contract revenue and forecast
costs to complete as well as the ability to deliver contracts
within contractually determined timelines.

Changes in the aforementioned judgements and/or related
estimates as contracts progress can result in material
adjustments to revenue and margins. As a result of the
above judgments, complexities involved and material
impact on the related financial statement elements, this
area has been considered a key audit matter in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements.

- testing the existence and valuation of variable consideration with respect
to the contractual terms and inspecting the related correspondences
with customers;

- reviewing legal and/or contracting experts’ reports received on certain
contentious matters;

- For cost incurred to date, testing samples to appropriate supporting
documents and performing cut-off procedures; and

- Testing the forecasted cost by obtaining executed purchase orders/
agreements and evaluating the reasonableness of management
judgements/ estimates;

Evaluating the appropriateness and adequacy of the disclosures related
to contract revenue and costs in the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Recoverability of Trade receivables and contract assets (Refer Notes 11, 14 and 31 of the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has trade receivables and
unbilled work-in-progress (contract assets) amounting to
¥ 62,187.57 lakhs and ¥ 80,946.71 lakhs, respectively.

The aforementioned trade receivables and unbilled work-
in-progress (contract assets) as at 31 March 2022 include
amounts amounting to T 1,295.99 lakhs and % 14,947.94
lakhs, respectively, representing receivables/ claims
for which Group is at various stages of negotiations/
discussions/ arbitration/ litigation with the clients.

In assessing the recoverability of the aforesaid receivables
including impairment allowance thereon, management’s
judgement involves consideration of the credit risk
of the customer, ageing of receivables, the likelihood
of collection based on the terms of the contract and
evaluation of likely outcome of litigations.

Due to the materiality and the relative significance of the
receivables to the consolidated financial statements as
well as the significant estimates and judgements used in
assessing the recoverability, we determined this to be a
key audit matter in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements.

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter included, but were not
limited to the following:

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s processes, evaluating the design
and testing the effectiveness of key internal financial controls over the
recoverability of the trade receivables and contract assets;

Circulating and obtaining confirmations for trade receivables, on sample
basis, with respect to outstanding balances;

Performing additional procedures, in respect of material trade receivables
and contract assets such as testing subsequent payments / certifications
from customers, reviewing the correspondence with customers;

Performing inquiry procedures with senior management of the Group
regarding the recoverability of the receivables;

Verifying contractual arrangements to evaluate management’s assessment
on the tenability and recoverability of these receivables;

Reviewing the legal opinions obtained by the management from independent
legal counsel in respect of certain contentious matters under litigations;

Assessing the allowance for impairment made by the management. Further
for material balances, discussing the basis for allowance for impairment with
the audit committee; and

Evaluating the appropriateness and adequacy of the disclosures related
to trade receivables and unbilled work-in-progress (contract assets) in
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion
and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and
Directors’ Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,

ITD Cementation India Limited

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board
of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors
are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
associates and joint ventures in accordance with the Ind



10.

11.

AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are also
responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including
financial information considered necessary for the
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
Further, in terms of the provision of the Act, the respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. These financial statements have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the respective Board of Directors/ management of the
companies/ entities included in the Group and its joint
ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of the
respective entities included in the Group and its joint
ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors/ management are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the companies included in the Group and its
joint ventures.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we

CONSOLIDATED

exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
and its joint ventures to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group and its joint ventures to cease to continue
as a going concern;

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information/ financial statements of
the entities or business activities within the Group
and its joint ventures, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of financial statements of such entities
included in the financial statements, of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the financial statements, which have been
audited by the other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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13.

14.

15.

16.
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We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

We did not audit the financial statements of one (1)
subsidiary whose financial statements (before eliminating
inter-company transactions and balances) reflect total
assets of ¥ 2.62 lakhs and net assets of ¥ 2.55 lakhs as at
31 March 2022, total revenues of ¥ 0.12 lakhs and net cash
outflows amounting to T 0.32 lakhs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements
also include Group’s share of net profit (including other
comprehensive income) of Nil for the year ended 31
March 2022, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, in respect of one (1) joint venture whose
financial statements has not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose audit reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid
subsidiary and joint venture is based solely on the audit
report of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the
above matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and the report of the other auditors.

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our
audit and on the consideration of the report of the other
auditor, referred to in paragraph 15, on separate financial
statements of the subsidiary, we report that the Holding
Company paid remuneration to their directors during

ITD Cementation India Limited

17.

18.

the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act. Further, we report that one (1) subsidiary company
covered under the Act has not paid or provided for any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable
in respect of such subsidiary.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of
the Act, based on the consideration of the Order reports
issued by us and by the other auditor as mentioned in
paragraph 15 above, of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements and covered under the
Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such
companies.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit and on the consideration of the report of the other
auditor on separate financial statements and other
financial information of the subsidiary incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditor;

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditor of its subsidiary company covered under the
Act, none of the directors of the Group companies
are disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in ‘Annexure II’ wherein we have expressed an
unmodified opinion; and



With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditor on separate financial statements
and other financial information of the subsidiary
incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act:

The consolidated financial statements disclose
the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group
and its joint ventures as detailed in notes 30A(ji)
to (vi) and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements;

The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and joint venture companies did not have
any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company during the year ended 31
March 2022. Further, there were no amounts
which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
subsidiary company during the year ended 31
March 2022;

a. The respective managements of Holding
and its subsidiary company incorporated
in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditor
of such subsidiary respectively that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 42(v) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company to or in any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company or any such subsidiary company
(‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of Holding
and subsidiary company incorporated

CONSOLIDATED

in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditor
of such subsidiary respectively that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 42(vi) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Holding Company or such
subsidiary company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed
by us and that performed by the auditor of
the subsidiary, as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and
(b) above contain any material misstatement.

The dividend paid by the Holding Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect
of such dividend declared for the previous year is
in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the
extent it applies to payment of dividend. As stated
in note 41 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, the Board of Directors of
the Holding Company have proposed dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2022 which is
subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend
declared is in accordance with section 123 of
the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of
dividend. Further, the subsidiary company has
not declared or paid any dividend during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 22109632AJQCXX2063

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2022
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ANNEXURE |

List of entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements

ﬁ;_ Name of the entity Relationship
1. ITD Cementation Projects India Limited Subsidiary
2. ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium Unincorporated entity (treated as subsidiary)
3. ITD Cemlindia Joint Venture Unincorporated entity (treated as subsidiary)
4. ITD-ITD Cem Joint Venture (Consortium of Unincorporated entity (treated as Joint Venture)
ITD-ITD Cementation)
5. ITD-ITD Cem Joint Venture Unincorporated entity (treated as Joint Venture)
6. CEC-ITD Cem-TPL Joint Venture Unincorporated entity (treated as Joint Venture)
7. ITD Cem - BBJ Joint Venture Unincorporated entity (treated as Joint Venture) {w.e.f. 28 September 2020}

ANNEXURE Il TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE
MEMBERS OF ITD CEMENTATION INDIA LIMITED ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

150

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of ITD Cementation India Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the
Group’) and its joint ventures as at and for the year ended
31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are
companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

ITD Cementation India Limited

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued
by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, and the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms
of their report, referred to in the Other Matter paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary, as aforesaid.



A company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditor on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary
company, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company, which are companies covered under the Act,

CONSOLIDATED

have in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such
controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI.

We did not audit the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to
one (1) subsidiary company, which is a company covered
under the Act, whose financial statements (before
eliminating inter-company balances/ transactions) reflect
total assets of ¥ 2.62 lakhs and net assets of ¥ 2.55 lakhs
as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of ¥ 0.12 lakhs and
net cash outflows amounting to ¥ 0.32 lakhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements in so
far as it relates to such subsidiary has been audited by
other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by
the management and our report on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements for the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company, as aforesaid,
under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to
such subsidiary company is based solely on the report
of the auditor of such subsidiary company. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the
other auditor.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 22109632AJQCXX2063

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 March 2022

% in lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 60,941.73 55,234.20
Right-of-use-assets 3B 4,151.89 4,301.44
Capital work-in-progress 3C 199.52 5,337.02
Intangible assets 3D 396.64 593.49
Investments in joint ventures 5 11,285.55 19,366.26
Financial assets
Other financial assets 6 4,717.09 2,686.42
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 606.40 513.84
Income tax assets (net) 7 10,339.17 6,502.40
Other non-current assets 8 6,986.07 5,711.04
Total non-current assets 99,624.06 1,00,246.11
Current assets
Inventories 9 40,022.84 33,729.33
Financial assets
Investments 10 - -
Trade receivables 11 62,187.57 53,085.94
Cash and cash equivalents 12 38,560.31 12,733.08
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 10,589.17 7,967.62
Other financial assets 6 3,846.25 3,008.42
Unbilled work-in-progress (contract assets) 14 80,946.71 85,363.68
Other current assets 8 25,865.84 23,099.21
Total current assets 2,62,018.69 2,18,987.28
TOTAL ASSETS 3,61,642.75 3,19,233.39
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,717.88 1,717.88
Other equity 1,11,399.30 1,04,851.49
Total equity attributable to share holders of the parent 1,13,117.18 1,06,569.37
Non-controlling interest 349.92 296.33
Total equity 1,13,467.10 1,06,865.70
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 8,735.98 8,696.01
Lease liabilities 17 3,174.88 2,924.60
Provisions 18 3,711.39 4,013.71
Total non-current liabilities 15,622.25 15,634.32
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 42,774.64 32,219.06
Lease liabilities 17 1,362.35 1,921.37
Trade payables 20
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,214.36 1,490.03
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 89,513.09 71,202.13
Other financial liabilities 21 8,291.44 9,286.26
Other current liabilities 22 84,513.59 79,216.26
Provisions 18 1,091.31 1,049.44
Current tax liabilities (net) 7 792.62 348.82
Total current liabilities 2,32,553.40 1,96,733.37
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,61,642.75 3,19,233.39

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Santi Jongkongka
Partner Executive Vice Chairman
Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312

Prasad Patwardhan
Chief Financial Officer
ACA No.44453

Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022

Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jayanta Basu
Managing Director
DIN: 08291114

Rahul Neogi
Company Secretary
ACS No.10653
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

% in lakhs
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 23 3,80,901.65 2,72,773.11
Other income 24 1,185.88 1,243.26
Total income 3,82,087.53 2,74,016.37
Expenses
Cost of construction materials consumed 25 1,23,944.43 85,326.87
Subcontracting expenses 1,16,875.70 79,214.90
Employee benefits expense 26 37,276.94 34,508.75
Finance costs 27 14,159.96 13,819.52
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 10,254.86 10,015.09
Other expenses 28 73,498.33 52,434.66
Total expenses 3,76,010.22 2,75,319.79
Profit/ (loss) before share of profit of joint ventures and tax 6,077.31 (1,303.42)
Share of profit of joint ventures (net) 3,298.86 3,303.80
Profit before tax 9,376.17 2,000.38
Tax expense 7
Current tax expense 2,601.84 771.90
Deferred tax credit (159.77) (366.75)
2,442.07 405.15
Net Profit for the year (A) 6,934.10 1,595.23
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Gain/ (loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 267.06 199.89
- Tax effect on above (67.21) (50.31)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Exchange difference of foreign operations (326.41) 99.96
- Tax effect on above - -
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (B) (126.56) 249.54
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 6,807.54 1,844.77
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 6,880.51 1,575.62
Non-controlling interests 53.59 19.61
6,934.10 1,595.23
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent (126.56) 249.54
Non-controlling interests - -
(126.56) 249.54
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 6,753.95 1,825.16
Non-controlling interests 53.59 19.61
6,807.54 1,844.77
Earnings per equity share of nominal value ¥ 1 each
Basic (in %) 29 4.01 0.92
Diluted (in %) 4.01 0.92
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our audit report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013
Rakesh R. Agarwal Santi Jongkongka Jayanta Basu
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312 DIN: 08291114
Prasad Patwardhan Rahul Neogi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACA No.44453 ACS No0.10653
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particular

Year ended
31 March 2022

% in lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax 9,376.17 2,000.38
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10,254.86 10,015.09
Finance costs 14,159.96 13,819.52
Interest income (504.20) (846.98)
Impairment allowance on financial / non-financial assets 913.94 1,252.03
Share of profit from joint ventures (net) (3,298.86) (3,303.80)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) (295.54) (345.69)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 43.23 1.69
Provision no longer required written back - (848.21)
Operating profit before working capital changes 30,649.56 21,744.03
Adjustment for changes in working capital
Increase in Inventories (6,293.51) (4,793.58)
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (9,369.87) 4,594.84
(Increase) / decrease in financial and other assets (5,246.82) 310.51
(Increase) / decrease in unbilled work-in-progress (contract assets) 3,771.27 (16,212.44)
Increase in trade payables 21,035.29 9,187.05
Increase in financial / other liabilities and provisions 5,244.08 6,496.68
Cash generated from operations 39,790.00 21,327.09
Direct taxes paid (net) (5,920.03) (2,199.65)
Net cash generated from operating activities 33,869.97 19,127.44

. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including intangible assets, capital work-in-progress, (11,100.90) (14,539.17)
capital advances/ payables)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,582.42 3,402.81
Net Investments in bank deposits (4,722.49) (5,397.43)
Net proceeds from unincorporated entity (Investment) 11,379.57 11,090.81
Interest received 387.74 328.50
Net cash used in investing activities (2,473.66) (5,114.48)

. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 3,998.11 9,355.82
Rrepayment of non-current borrowings (2,142.13) (1,748.58)
Proceeds from / (repayment of) short term borrowings (net) 8,739.57 (15,917.74)
Repayment of lease obligation (2,484.75) (3,302.38)
Finance costs paid (18,473.60) (12,842.07)
Dividend paid (206.28) (514.97)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,569.08) (24,969.92)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 25,827.23 (10,956.96)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 12,733.08 23,690.04
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (Refer note 12) 38,560.31 12,733.08

Note:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow statement referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal

Partner
Membership No: 109632

Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Santi Jongkongka

Executive Vice Chairman

DIN: 08441312

Prasad Patwardhan
Chief Financial Officer
ACA No.44453

Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022

Jayanta Basu
Managing Director
DIN: 08291114

Rahul Neogi
Company Secretary
ACS No.10653
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Number T in lakhs

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each issued, subscribed and paid

As at 1 April 2020 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issue of equity share - -
As at 31 March 2021 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issue of equity share - -
As at 31 March 2022 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
T in lakhs
Reserves and surplus . Exchange .
Equity . Total equity
instruments differences attributable Non-

on translating

Particulars Securities General Retained through other the financial to equity  controlling Total equity
premium  reserve earnings comprer_\ensive statements of a holders of interest
income foreign operation the parent

As at 1 April 2020 78,512.04 676.48 24,353.43 (0.26) - 1,03,541.69 276.72 1,03,818.41
Total comprehensive income - - 1,725.20 - 99.96 1,825.16 19.61 1,844.77
for the year

Dividends - - (515.36) - (515.36) - (515.36)
As at 31 March 2021 78,512.04 676.48 25,563.27 (0.26) 99.96 1,04,851.49 296.33 1,05,147.82
Total comprehensive income - - 7,080.37 - (326.41) 6,753.96 53.59 6,807.55
for the year

Dividends - - (206.15) - (206.15) - (206.15)
As at 31 March 2022 78,5612.04 676.48 32,437.49 (0.26) (226.45) 1,11,399.30 349.92 1,11,749.22

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. This account is utilised in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’).

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a
specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to the introduction of the Companies Act,
2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

Retained earnings represents the profits/losses that the Group has earned / incurred till date including gain / (loss) on fair
value of defined benefits plans as adjusted for distirbutions to owners, transfer to other reserves, etc.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(iv) Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation
The Group has recognised exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations (i.e. Branch in Myanmar)
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in ‘Foreign Currency Translation Reserve’ in Other Equity.

(v) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI
reserve within equity. The Group transfers amount from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities
are derecognised.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Rakesh R. Agarwal Santi Jongkongka Jayanta Basu
Partner Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312 DIN: 08291114
Prasad Patwardhan Rahul Neogi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACA No.44453 ACS No.10653
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

ITD Cementation India Limited (‘ITD Cem’ or the ‘Holding
Company’ or the ‘Parent Company) is a public company
domiciled in India and was incorporated in 1978 under the
provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. Its shares
are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India - the
BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.
The Holding Company having CIN L61000MH1978PLC020435
has its registered office located at National Plastic Building, A
Subhash Road, Paranjape B Scheme, Vile Parle (East), Mumbai
400057, India.

The financial statements comprises the financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries referred to as the “Group” and its
joint ventures). The consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors on 26 May 2022.

The Group is engaged in construction of a wide variety of
structures like maritime structures, mass rapid transport
systems (MRTS), dams and tunnels, airports, highways,
bridges and flyovers and other foundations and specialised
engineering work. The activities of the Group comprise only
one business segment viz Construction.

i. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared to comply in all material respects with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, with the exception of certain
financial assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value, on an accrual basis.

The Group’s financial statements are reported in Indian
Rupees, which is also the Group’s functional currency,
and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (3 00,000),
except when otherwise indicated.

The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the
indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

ii. Operating cycle for current and non-current
classification:

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the
operating cycle of the Group as per the guidance set out
in Schedule Il to the Act. Operating cycle for the business
activities of the Group covers the duration of the project/
contract/ service including the defect liability period,
wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of

CONSOLIDATED

receivables (including retention monies) within the credit
period normally applicable to the respective project.

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements have been prepared on the
following basis:

- The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries. For this purpose, an entity
which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Parent Company is treated as subsidiary. The Parent
Company together with its subsidiaries constitute
the Group. Control exists when the Parent Company,
directly or indirectly, has power over the investee, is
exposed to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

- Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Parent Company, directly or indirectly, obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss from the date the Parent Company, directly
or indirectly, gains control until the date when the
Parent Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to
control the subsidiary.

- The consolidated financial statements of the
Group combines financial statements of the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries line-by-
line by adding together the like items of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and unrealised
profits/losses on intra-group transactions are
eliminated on consolidation. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been harmonised to
ensure the consistency with the policies adopted
by the Parent Company. The consolidated
financial statements have been presented to the
extent possible, in the same manner as Parent
Company’s standalone financial statements.
Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling
interests and have been shown separately in the
financial statements.

- Non-controlling interest represents that part of
the total comprehensive income and net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests which are not
owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company.

- The gains/losses in respect of part divestment/
dilution of stake in subsidiary companies not
resulting in ceding of control, are recognised directly
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in other equity attributable to the owners of the
Parent Company.

The gains/losses in respect of divestment of stake
resulting in ceding of control in subsidiary companies
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The investment representing the interest retained in
a former subsidiary, if any, is initially recognised at its
fair value with the corresponding effect recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as on the date
the control is ceded. Such retained interest is
subsequently accounted as an associate or a joint
venture or a financial asset.

When the Group has with other parties joint control of
the arrangement and rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement, it recognises its interest as joint venture.
Joint control exists when the decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
the control. When the Group has significant influence over
the other entity, it recognises such interests as associates.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the entity but
is not control or joint control over the entity.

The results, assets and liabilities of joint venture and
associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using equity method of accounting after
making necessary adjustments to achieve uniformity in
application of accounting policies, wherever applicable.
An investment in associate or joint venture is initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture or associate. Gain or loss in
respect of changes in other equity of joint ventures or
associates resulting in dilution of stake in the joint ventures
and associates is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On acquisition of investment in a joint venture
or associate, any excess of cost of investment over the
fair value of the assets and liabilities of the joint venture,
is recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying
value of the investment in the joint venture and associate.
The excess of fair value of assets and liabilities over the
investment is recognised directly in equity as capital
reserve. The unrealised profits/losses on transactions
with joint ventures are eliminated by reducing the carrying
amount of investment.

The carrying amount of the equity accounted investments
are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

ITD Cementation India Limited

In accordance with Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements, when
the Group has joint control of the arrangement based
on contractually determined right to the assets and
obligations for liabilities, it recognises such interests as
joint operations. Joint control exists when the decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing the control. In respect of its interests
in joint operations, the Group recognises its share in
assets, liabilities, income and expenses line-by-line in
the standalone financial statements of the entity which
is party to such joint arrangement which then becomes
part of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
when the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries are combined for consolidation.

The Group accounts for its business combinations
under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisition
related costs are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition
for recognition are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill on consolidation is allocated to cash generating
units or group of cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.

Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortised,
however, it is tested for impairment annually. In the event
of cessation of operations of a subsidiary, the unimpaired
goodwill is written off fully.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests
in entities that are under common control are accounted at
historical cost. The difference between any consideration
given and the aggregate historical carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded
in shareholders’ equity.

Notes to the financial statements represent notes
involving items which are considered material and are
accordingly disclosed. Materiality for the purpose is
assessed in relation to the information contained in
the financial statements. Further, additional statutory
information disclosed in separate financial statements of
the subsidiary and/or a parent having no bearing on the
true and fair view of the financial statements has not been
disclosed in these financial statements.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity
with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS, requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as
at the date of financial statements and the results of
operation during the reported period. Although these
estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge
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of current events and actions, actual results could differ
from these estimates which are recognised in the period
in which they are determined.

Key Accounting Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in
the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

The outbreak of COVID-19 had disrupted regular business
operations of the Group due to the lock down restrictions
and other emergency measures imposed by the
Government from time to time. The Group’s operations
have started recovering from the economic slowdown
caused by COVID-19 pandemic and reaching normalcy.
The Group management has taken into account the
possible impacts of known events, upto the date of the
approval of these financial results, arising from COVID-19
pandemic on the carrying value of the assets and liabilities
as at 31 March 2022. While the Group continues to closely
monitor the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, there exists
uncertainty in estimating the future impact of COVID-19
pandemic on the Group and, accordingly, the actual
impact in the future may be different from those presently
estimated.

Refer Note 2(xvii)(a) below

The Holding Company has performed valuation for its
investments in equity of certain subsidiaries and joint
ventures for assessing whether there is any impairment
in the fair value. When the fair value of investments in
subsidiaries cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the discounted cash
flow model. Similar assessment is carried for exposure
of the nature of loans and interest receivable thereon.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as

CONSOLIDATED

expected earnings in future years, liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of these investments.

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax
assets, management considers whether some portion
or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the periods in which the temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers
the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level
of historical taxable income and projections for future
taxable income over the periods in which the deferred
income tax assets are deductible, management believes
that the Group will realize the benefits of those deductible
differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the
near term if estimates of future taxable income during the
carry forward period are reduced.

The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation and
compensated absences are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Group evalutes if an arrangement qualifies to be a
lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification
of a lease required significant judgement. The Group
uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate. The Group revises the lease term if there
is a change in non-cancellable period of a lease.

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of
its life. The useful lives and residual values of assets are
determined by the management at the time of acquisition
of asset and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year. The lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as anticipation of future
events, which may impact their life, such as changes in
technology.
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A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as result of a past event and it is probable
that the outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate
can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial
statements. Contingent assets are disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, at fair value
at each balance sheet date. (Refer Note 35)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
-In the absence of a principal market, In the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which
fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group

ITD Cementation India Limited

vii.

viii.

determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the
movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per
the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above. This note summarises accounting policy
for fair value.

Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates
and assumptions (notes 34, 37, 38 and 39).

- Financial instruments (including those carried at
amortised cost) (notes 6, 11, 12, 13, 16, 17, 19, 20 and 21).

- Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement
hierarchy (note 35).

Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible assets)

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost of
acquisition including attributable interest and finance
costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the
assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost
and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated
from the financial statements, either on disposal or when
retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure
incurred in respect of assets under development and not
ready for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost

includes related acquisition expenses, construction cost
and other direct expenditure.
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(i)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets mainly comprise of license fees and implementation cost for software and other application software
acquired for in-house use.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment so as to expense the cost less residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight line basis. Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use, over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Asset category Useful life (in years) Basis of determination of useful lives”

Buildings 60 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Leasehold improvements Lease period or 5 years, Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.

whichever is lower

Plant and equipment (including tools and 3to 21 Based on technical evaluation by management's
equipment) expert.

Vehicles 8 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Office equipment 5 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Furniture and fixtures 10 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Computers 3to6 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.
Intangible (Computer software) 5 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act.

A Useful lives of asset classes determined by management estimate, which are generally higher than those prescribed under Schedule Il to the
Act and are supported by the internal technical assessment of useful lives.

The estimated useful life and residual values are reviewed trades) are recognised on the trade date i.e., the date that
at each financial year end and the effect of any change the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted

. . (ii) Subsequent Measurement
on prospective basis.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately assets are classified in following categories:

to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. - Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis, Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised

from the date on which asset is ready to use. cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model with an objective to hold these assets in order to

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms

comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash

accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss under flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

Other income/ Other expenses. the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from

Financial Instruments these financial assets is included in finance income using

the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method. Impairment
gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

- Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Initial Recognition Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through OCI if these financial assets are held within a
business model with an objective to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and to sell these
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
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exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through OCI is carried at FVPL.

(iii)

(iv)
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Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies the
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL’) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets
and credit risk exposures.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition
of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
Simplified approach does not require the Group to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
(i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the
period is recognised as income/expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

ITD Cementation India Limited

(i)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued
for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued
for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair
value of the equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities
- Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings
and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

- Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, as described below:

- Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised
as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of
the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Where the Group issues optionally convertible debentures,
the fair value of the liability portion of such debentures is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible debenture. This value is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption of the debentures. The
remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity
portion of the instrument. This is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity (net of income tax) and are not
subsequently re-measured.

- Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments i.e. foreign
exchange forward and options contracts to manage
its exposure to foreign exchange risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. The
Group uses hedging instruments that are governed by the
policies of the Group.

Hedge Accounting

The Group uses foreign currency forward and options
contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations relating to highly probable forecast
transactions. The Group designates such forward contracts
in a cash flow hedging relationship by applying the hedge
accounting principles. These forward contracts are stated
at fair value at each reporting date. Changes in the fair
value of these forward contracts that are designated and
effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognized
directly in OCI and accumulated under the hedging cash
flow hedge reserve, net of applicable deferred income
taxes and the ineffective portion is recognized immediately
to the statement of profit and loss. Amounts accumulated
under the hedging cash flow hedge reserve are reclassified
to the statement of profit and loss in the same period
during which the forecasted transaction affects to the
statement of profit and loss. For forecasted transactions,
any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognized under the hedging cash flow hedge reserve
is retained until the forecasted transaction occurs. If the
forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
net cumulative gain or loss recognized under the hedging
cash flow hedge reserve is immediately transferred to the
statement of profit and loss.

- De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different

Xii.

CONSOLIDATED

terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Employee Benefits

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such
as provident fund, employees’ state insurance, labour
welfare fund and superannuation scheme are charged
as an expense based on the amount of contribution
required to be made as and when services are rendered
by the employees. Group’s provident fund contribution,
in respect of certain employees of the Company and its
Indian subsidiaries is made to a government administered
fund, and charged as an expense to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group has no
further obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

In respect of certain employees, provident fund
contributions are made to a trust administered by the
Group. The interest rate payable to the members of the
trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest
declared by the Central Government under the Employees
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
and shortfall, if any, shall be made good by the Group.
Accordingly, the contribution paid or payable and the
interest shortfall, if any, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which services are rendered by the employee.

The Group also provides for gratuity which is a defined
benefit plan the liabilities of which are determined based
on valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by
an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains
and losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in the
OCl, in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognised in OCI are not reclassified to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year of plan amendment or curtailment. The classification
of the Group’s obligation into current and non-current is
as per the actuarial valuation report.

In case of foreign subsidiaries, the post-employment
benefit plan, in the form of a pension, qualify as defined
benefit plans. For the purposes of determining the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date, the total defined
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benefit obligations, made by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method, are compared to
the fair value of the plan assets and resultant surplus or
shortfall is recognised as an asset or liability, respectively.
Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of this pension plan are recognised in
the OCI, in the period in which they occur.

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised
within next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. Leave entitlement, other than short
term compensated absences, are provided based on a
actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re-
measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in
respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages,
performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses
at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit
and Loss of the period in which the related service is
rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated
absences is recognised in the period in which the
absences occur.

Inventories

Construction materials are valued at lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average method and comprises the purchase price
including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the Group from the taxing authorities).
Net Realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale.

Spares that are of regular use are charged to the statement
of profit and loss as and when consumed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet
comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three month or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker
regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the
whole Group as one segment of “Construction”. Thus, as
defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Group’s
entire business falls under this one operational segment
and hence the necessary information has already been
disclosed in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

ITD Cementation India Limited
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Foreign Exchange Translation of Foreign Projects
and Accounting of Foreign Exchange Transaction

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are reported using the closing rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement
of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of
the Group are recognised as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

The Group derives revenues primarily from providing
construction services.

Effective 1 April 2019, the Group adopted Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the
cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to
contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2019.
In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition
method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively
adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was
insignificant. On account of adoption of Ind AS 115,
unbilled work-in-progress (contract asset) has been
considered as non-financial asset.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in
exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from construction services, where the
performance obligations are satisfied over time and where
there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability
of consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-
completion method. The percentage-of-completion of a
contract is determined by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed upto the reporting date
bear to the estimated total contract costs. When there is
uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability,
revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty
is resolved.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring good or service to a customer excluding
amounts collected on behalf of a third party and is
adjusted for variable considerations.
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Contract revenue earned in excess of certification are
classified as contract assets (which we refer as unbilled
work-in-progress) while certification in excess of contract
revenue are classified as contract liabilities (which we
refer to as due to customer). Advance payments received
from contractee for which no services are rendered are
presented as ‘Advance from contractee’.

Due to the nature of the work required to be performed
on many of the performance obligations, the estimation of
total revenue and cost of completion is complex, subject
to many variables and requires significant judgment.
Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due
to liquidated damages, price variation clauses, changes
in scope, incentives, if any. The Group considers its
experience with similar transactions and expectations
regarding the contract in estimating the amount of variable
consideration to which it will be entitled and determining
whether the estimated variable consideration should be
constrained. The Group includes estimated amounts in
the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a
significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is resolved.The estimates of
variable consideration are based largely on an assessment
of anticipated performance and all information (historical,
current and forecasted) that is reasonably available.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions,
deletions or changes are approved either to the contract
scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications
of contracts involves assessing whether the services
added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the
pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added
that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative
catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted
for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the
additional services are priced at the standalone selling
price, or as a termination of the existing contract and
creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone
selling price

The Group presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Costs to obtain a contract which are incurred regardless
of whether the contract was obtained are charged-off in
the statement of Profit & Loss immediately in the period
in which such costs are incurred.

In case of Unincorporated Entities in the nature of
subsidiary / joint venture, share of profit and loss are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when the right to receive the profit share or obligation to
settle the loss is established.

a.

xviii.

CONSOLIDATED

In case of Unincorporated Entities in the nature of a
Joint Operation; the Group recognises its direct right
to the assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenues
and expenses of joint operations and its share of any
jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. These have been incorporated in the financial
statements under the appropriate headings.

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable
Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Other Income

Other items of income are accounted as and when the
right to receive such income arises and it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and
the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during
the period. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated
tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances
and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes
are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting
advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the
same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying
units intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance
Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
between the financial statements’ carrying amount of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognised in the period that includes the
enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
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will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offseted if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax
(MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
to the extent it would be available for set off against
future current income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet
when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the future economic benefit associated with the asset
will be realised.

Leases

Effective 1 April 2019, the Group has adopted Ind AS
116, “Leases” using the modified retrospective approach,
as a result of which the comparative information is not
required to be restated.

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of
leases for buildings and vehicles. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange of the consideration.

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and a
corresponding lease liability for all the lease arrangements
in which it is a lease, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease. They are subsequenty
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The estimated useful life of the assets
are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Carrying amount of right-of-use asset is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

ITD Cementation India Limited

XX.

XXi.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost
at the present value of the future lease payments. The
future lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. For a lease with
reasonably similar characteristics, the Group, on a
lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental
borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities have been
separately presented in the Balance Sheet. Further, lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

As at each Balance Sheet date, the Group assesses
whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired and also whether there is an indication
of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous
periods. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
determines the recoverable amount and impairment
loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets’
fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that
generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to
sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and risk specified to the asset.
In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market
transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including
impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties
previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up
to the amount of any previous revaluation.

When the Group considers that there are no realistic
prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts
are written off. If the amount of impairment loss
subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Group by the weighted
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average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Group and weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per equity share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually
issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the
outstanding equity shares).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity
and compensated absences) are determined based on
management’s estimate required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of money
is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible
obligations that arise from past events, whose existence
would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. A contingent liability also arises,
in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual
expenditure, classified and disclosed as estimated
amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for.

XXiv.

XXV.
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Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense within profit or
loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature
or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain
the performance of the enterprise for the period, the
nature and amount of such material items are disclosed
separately as exceptional items.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards. There
is no such notification which would have been applicable
to the Group effective 1 April 2022.

Amendment to Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide notification
dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds received from selling items produced while
the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use (for
example, the proceeds from selling samples produced
when testing a machine to see if it is functioning properly).

Amendment to Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued
an amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cost
of fulfilling a contract comprises: the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Amendment to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an
amendment to Ind AS 103 and has added a new exception
in the standard for liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an
amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarifies that which fees
an entity should include when it applies the ‘10%’ test in
assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An
entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

The Group is evaluating the impact of the aforementioned
amendment. Based on the intial assessment, the effect on
the consolidated financials statements is expected to be
insignificant.
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CONSOLIDATED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 3 Property, plant and equipment (contd.)

3B Right-of-use-asset
The details of the right-of-use asset are as follows:

[ lakhs)
Land Buildings e';';gtmae”n‘i Total
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2020 902.30 3,930.87 4,099.11 8,932.28
Additions/Adjustments 777.41 34.90 167.34 979.65
Disposals - (12.99) - (12.99)
As at 31 March 2021 1,679.71 3,952.78 4,266.45 9,898.94
Additions/Adjustments 93.73 215.08 1,605.53 1,914.34
Disposals (1,395.67) (349.32) (180.17) (1,925.16)
As at 31 March 2022 377.77 3,818.54 5,691.81 9,888.12
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2020 657.87 613.40 1,431.12 2,702.39
Depreciation charge 776.12 621.49 1,506.61 2,904.22
Accumulated depreciation on disposals - 9.11) - (9.11)
As at 31 March 2021 1,433.99 1,225.78 2,937.73 5,597.50
Depreciation charge 114.40 659.59 1,162.71 1,936.70
Accumulated depreciation on disposals (1,395.67) (222.13) (180.17) (1,797.97)
As at 31 March 2022 152.72 1,663.24 3,920.27 5,736.23
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 245.72 2,727.00 1,328.72 4,301.44
As at 31 March 2022 225.05 2,155.30 1,771.54 4,151.89
Note:
Refer Note 39 for the disclosures related to Ind AS 116 - Leases.
3C Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule:
As at 31 March 2022
T in lakhs
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 3.50 - - - 3.50
Projects temporarily suspended (Refer note below) - - - 196.02 196.02
Total as at 31 March 2022 3.50 - - 196.02 199.52
As at 31 March 2021
T in lakhs
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 4,750.00 391.00 - - 5,141.00
Projects temporarily suspended (Refer note below) - - - 196.02 196.02
Total as at 31 March 2021 4,750.00 391.00 - 196.02 5,337.02

Note: Projects temporarily suspended represents expenses incurred for the construction of a plant depot wherein the work was suspended due
to the pending requisite approval from regulatory authorities. The requisite approvals have been received subsequent to 31 March 2022 and the
project is expected to be completed by year ending 31 March 2023.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 3 Property, plant and equipment (contd.)

3D Intangible assets - Computer software

T in lakhs
Gross carrying value Total
As at 1 April 2020 998.36
Additions 7.70
Disposals
As at 31 March 2021 1,006.06
Additions -
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2022 1,006.06
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2020 215.97
Amortisation charge 196.60
Amortisation on disposal of assets -
As at 31 March 2021 412.57
Amortisation charge 196.85
Amortisation on disposal of assets -
As at 31 March 2022 609.42
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2021 593.49
As at 31 March 2022 396.64
NOTE 4 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
% in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a) Depreciation of tangible assets 8,121.31 6,914.27
b) Depreciation on right-of-use-asset 1,936.70 2,904.22
c) Amortisation of intangible assets 196.85 196.60
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 10,254.86 10,015.09
NOTE 5INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
2 in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non - current
Deemed investment in unincorporated entities classified as joint ventures 11,285.55 19,366.26
Total non-current investment 11,285.55 19,366.26
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CONSOLIDATED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 5 Investments in joint ventures (contd.)

Note 5.1 Detailed list of non-current investments
% in lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deemed investments in unincorporated entities, unquoted
Unincorporated entities classified as Joint Ventures*

ITD - ITDCem JV A # 8,780.60 18,448.23
ITD - ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD - ITD Cementation) 495.44 524.32
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV 2,009.51 393.71
Total non-current investments 11,285.55 19,366.26

* Being unincorporated entities, the Holding Company is not require to have any investment in these entities as per the joint venture agreement.
A Receivables from unincorporated entities representing groups’s net investment in the entities.
# Includes % 57.49 lakhs (31 March 2021 : % 57.49 lakhs) representing fair value of financial guarantee.

Details:
Aggregate value of non-current investments is as follows:

2 in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
() Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 11,285.55 19,366.26
(i) Aggregate value of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
(iii) Aggregate value of Impairment of investments - -
11,285.55 19,366.26
() Investments carried at deemed cost 11,285.55 19,366.26
(i) Investments carried at amortised cost - -
(ili) Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss - -
11,285.55 19,366.26
NOTE 6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Security deposits 732.52 802.66
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months” 3,984.57 1,883.76
Total non-current financial assets 4,717.09 2,686.42
A held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and other commitments issued by banks on behalf of the Company
Current
Security deposits
Considered good - unsecured 3,272.13 2,418.04
Credit impaired 172.57 172.57
Receivable from related parties [Refer note 36(c)] 409.09 343.50
Interest accrued on deposits 155.65 188.40
Employee advances 9.38 58.48
4,018.82 3,180.99
Less: impairment allowance (172.57) (172.57)
Total current financial assets 3,846.25 3,008.42
Total other financial assets 8,563.34 5,694.84
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 7 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
i. The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:

As at
31 March 2022

% in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

a) Income tax assets 15,687.06 15,564.17
b) Current income tax liabilities (6,140.51) (9,410.59)
Net income tax assets 9,546.55 6,153.58
Income tax assets in case of certain entities 10,339.17 6,502.40
Current tax liabilities in case of certain entities (792.62) (348.82)
Net income tax assets 9,546.55 6,153.58
ii. The gross movement in the current tax asset:

% in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Net current income tax assets at the beginning 6,153.58 4,488.12
Interest on income tax refund 74.78 237.71
Income tax paid (net) 5,920.03 2,199.65
Current income tax expense (2,601.84) (771.90)
Net current income tax assets at the end 9,546.55 6,153.58

iii. Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

T in lakhs

Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current income taxes 2,601.84 771.90
Deferred income tax credit (159.77) (366.75)
Income tax expenses in Statement of Profit and Loss (net) 2,442.07 405.15

Deferred income tax charge in Other Comprehensive Income 67.21 50.31
Income tax expenses (net) 2,509.28 455.46

iv. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate

to the profit before income taxes is as below:

2 in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before income tax 9,376.17 2,000.38
Applicable income tax rate 2517% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense 2,359.79 503.46
Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose (5.70) (158.59)
Effect of income not considered for tax purpose (848.99) (852.39)
Effect of items on which deferred tax assets not recognised 1,409.27 782.86
Tax adjustments for earlier years (933.05) -
Effect of difference in tax rates of entities within Group 460.75 129.81
Income tax expense charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 2,442.07 405.15
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 7 Income tax assets (net) (contd.)

v. Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of temporary differences are:

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

(a) Deferred tax assets
Impairment allowance of financial assets 1,549.52 1,335.12
Expenses allowable on payment basis 1,469.23 1,520.35
Other temporary differences 100.25 140.93
3,119.00 2,996.40
(b) Deferred tax liability
Timing difference on amount of depreciation on tangible assets and intangible assets 2,512.60 2,482.56
2,512.60 2,482.56
Deferred tax assets (net) [a-b] 606.40 513.84
Deferred tax assets in case of certain entities 606.40 513.84
Deferred tax liabilities in case of certain entities - -
Net deferred tax assets 606.40 513.84
vi. Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
T in lakhs
Impairment Provision for Timing difference
. allqwance of employge Others o?a:c?:;:r:nﬁ Total
financial assets benefits . ng
intangible assets
At 1 April 2020 1,003.81 1,739.18 142.55 (2,688.14) 197.40
(Charged) / credited
- to profit or loss 331.31 (168.52) (1.62) 205.58 366.75
- to other comprehensive income - (50.31) - - (50.31)
At 31 March 2021 1,335.12 1,520.35 140.93 (2,482.56) 513.84
(Charged) / credited
- to profit or loss 214.40 16.09 (40.68) (30.04) 159.77
- to other comprehensive income - (67.21) - - (67.21)
At 31 March 2022 1,549.52 1,469.23 100.25 (2,512.60) 606.40
NOTE 8 OTHER ASSETS
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Capital advances 938.02 1,315.78
Balances with government authorities 4,943.08 4,395.26
Prepaid expenses 1,105.02 -
Total other non-current assets 6,986.07 5,711.04
Current
Advance to suppliers and subcontractors 5,924.88 3,915.74
Balances with government authorities 17,316.04 15,921.89
Prepaid expenses 2,624.92 3,261.58
Total other current assets 25,865.84 23,099.21
Total other assets 32,851.91 28,810.25
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 9 INVENTORIES

T in lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Construction materials 36,250.11 31,045.02
Spares 3,772.73 2,684.31
Total inventories 40,022.84 33,729.33
NOTE 10 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
AVR Infra Private Limited 0.26 0.26
2,600 (31 March 2021: 2,600) equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid
Less: impairment allowance (0.26) (0.26)
Total current investments - -
NOTE 11 TRADE RECEIVABLES
2 in lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables 62,187.57 58,085.94
[Including retention ¥ 36,543.72 lakhs (31 March 2021 : ¥ 25,294.52 lakhs)]
Total trade receivables 62,187.57 53,085.94
Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considered good - secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 62,187.57 53,085.94
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (Refer note 37) - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired 4,341.56 4,073.32
Total 66,529.13 57,159.26
Less: impairment allowance (4,341.56) (4,073.32)
Total trade receivables 62,187.57 53,085.94

Notes:

(i) There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Group, either severally or jointly with any other person, or from any firms
or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
(ii) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days, except retention deposit which are due after completion

of defect liability period of the respective projects.
(iiiy Trade receivable aging schedule:

As at 31 March 2022

% in lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction

Not due L(iersr1$otr1htta12 & T{,‘;Zs; 1-2years  2-3 Years MO?;teh:rz notl

() Undisputed trade receivables- considered good |30,331.14 |22,759.60 | 1,588.26 | 3,249.20 | 1,092.54 | 1,917.49 60,938.23

(i) Undisputed trade receivables which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 189.65 133.15 12.13 16.33 40.23 | 2,658.11 3,049.60

(iv) Disputed trade receivables-considered good 0.07 347.97 3.65 246.46 172.73 478.46 1,249.34

(v) Disputed trade receivables which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - 2.18 0.02 1.54 1.08 | 1,287.14 1,291.96

Total as at 31 March 2022 30,520.86 | 23,242.90 | 1,604.06 | 3,513.53 | 1,306.58 | 6,341.20 66,529.13
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CONSOLIDATED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 11 Trade receivables (contd.)

As at 31 March 2021

T in lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Not due I%eisomig 6 T;;gsr 1-2years  2-3 Years Mo':;::_g Total
() Undisputed trade receivables- considered good 20,690.15 25,851.65 1,542.41 3,219.77 388.38 394.15 52,086.51
(i) Undisputed trade receivables which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 141.14 158.45 7.69 121.13  2,168.46 2,889.88
(iv) Disputed trade receivables-considered good 99.15 695.76 - 79.53 112.66 999.43
(v) Disputed trade receivables which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired 0.68 4.75 - 145.54 534.31 1,183.44
Total as at 31 March 2021 20,931.12 26,710.61 1,550.10 4,023.27 734.58 3,209.58 57,159.26
NOTE 12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
% in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance with banks:
- in current accounts 38,058.80 12,683.09
- in deposit account with original maturity upto 3 months 450.00 -
Cash on hand 51.51 49.99
Total cash and cash equivalents 38,560.31 12,733.08
NOTE 13 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Bank deposits with maturity of less than 12 months 2,099.85 1,274.88
Earmarked balances with banks for:
- Bank deposits held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees and other 8,480.32 6,683.61
commitments issued by banks on behalf of the Company
- Balances with bank for unclaimed dividend (Refer note 13.1 below) 9.00 9.13
Total other bank balances 10,589.17 7,967.62

Note 13.1 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at each

reporting period.

NOTE 14 UNBILLED WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CONTRACT ASSETS)

As at
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
As at

31 March 2021

Unbilled work-in-progress 82,651.37 86,422.64
Less: impairment allowance (1,704.66) (1058.96)
80,946.71 85,363.68
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NOTE 15 SHARE CAPITAL

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised share capital
300,000,000 Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 3,000.00 3,000.00
(31 March 2021: 300,000,000)
45,000,000 Redeemable preference shares of ¥ 10 each 4,500.00 4,500.00
(31 March 2021: 45,000,000)
Total authorised share capital 7,500.00 7,500.00
Issued equity share capital:
171,812,844 Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 1,718.13 1,718.13
(31 March 2021:171,812,844)
Total issued equity share capital 1,718.13 1,718.13
Subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital:
171,787,584 Equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid up 1,717.88 1,717.88
(81 March 2021:171,787,584)
Total Subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital 1,717.88 1,717.88
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Number T lakhs
As at 1 April 2020 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 17,17,87,584 1,717.88
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2022 17,17,87,584 1,717.88

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1 per share. Each holder of equity share
is entitled to one vote per share. The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend
proposed if any by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts,if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.

c. Shares held by Ultimate Parent Company

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited, Thailand 8,01,13,180 46.64% 8,01,13,180 46.64%
d. Shareholding of more than 5%:
Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited, Thailand 8,01,13,180 46.64% 8,01,13,180 46.64%
Franklin India Focused Equity Fund 1,71,00,000 9.95% 1,71,00,000 9.95%
Massachusetts Institute of Technology 1,15,86,000 6.74% 1,15,86,000 6.74%
Nippon Llfe India Trustee Limited - - 1,12,19,299 6.53%

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership
of shares.
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 15 Share capital (contd.)

e. Shareholding of promoters:

Sr , o No. of shares Asat % change during
No Promoter’'s Name % of total shares 31 March 2021 % of total shares year
1 ltalian-Thai Development Public 8,01,13,180 46.64% 8,01,13,180 46.64% -

Company Limited, Thailand

f. Bonus shares/ buy back/shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years:
() Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received
in cash - Nil
(i)  Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil
(i) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - Nil

g. Outof the total issued capital, 25,260 (31 March 2021: 25,260) equity shares of 1 each have been kept in abeyance pending
final settlement of rights issues.

h. The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has recommended equity dividend of % 0.45 per share (31 March 2021:
% 0.12 per share) for the year ended 31 March 2022. (Refer note 42)

T in lakhs

As at
31 March 2021

Non-current portion:
Secured
Rupee Term loans

From Banks (Refer note 16.1) 6,384.11 7,508.47
Plant loans

From Banks (Refer note 16.2) 2,351.87 1,187.54
Total non-current borrowings 8,735.98 8,696.01

Current maturities of long-term debts
Secured
Rupee Term loans

From Banks (Refer note 16.1) 2,524.21 919.85
Plant loans

From Banks (Refer note 16.2) 1,177.94 966.29
Total current maturities of long-term debts 3,702.15 1,886.14
Total borrowings 12,438.13 10,582.15

Terms of repayment and details of security

Loans obtained for capital expenses including reimbursement of expenses carry an interest rate linked to 1 year MCLR currently
ranging from 9.15% to 9.20% (31 March 2021 : 9.55% p.a.) are repayable in 14 quarterly installments. This loan is secured with
exclusive charge on an immovable property of the Holding Company.

Loan obtained under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme 2.0 (‘ECLGS’) for general corporate/long term working capital
purposes carry interest rates ranging from 7.50% to 9.25% (31 March 2021 : 7.50% to 9.25% p.a.) for a period of 60 months
including moratorium period of 12 months and thereafter repayable in 48 monthly installments. These loans are secured by
second pari passu charge on the current assets and movable plant and machinery, other than those charged in favour of Plant
loans. The entire facility under ECLGS is also covered by way of 100% guarantee cover available from National Credit Guarantee
Trustee Company Limited (NCGTC).

Loans obtained for purchase of construction equipment carry interest rates ranging from 7.25% p.a. to 9.50% p.a. (31 March
2021 : 7.65% p.a. to 9.50% p.a.) and balance outstanding as on 31 March 2022 are repayable in 1 to 55 monthly installments.
These loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on specific equipment financed by the banks.
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 16 Borrowings (contd.)

Note 16.3 - Net debt reconciliation

An analysis of net debts and the movement in net debts for each of the reporting period as follows:

T in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current borrowings (includes accrued interest) 12,473.28 10,610.23

Current borrowings (includes accrued interest) 39,119.95 30,363.92
Cash and cash equivalents (38,560.31) (12,733.08)

Net debts 13,032.92 28,241.07
T in lakhs

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Cash and Cash Non-current o borrowings Total
equivalents borrowings

Net debt as at 1 April 2020 (23,690.04) 2,983.71 46,494.71 25,788.38

Cash flows (net) 10,956.96 7,607.24 (15,917.74) 2,646.46

Interest expense - 327.33 5,105.56 5,432.89
Interest paid - (308.05) (5,318.61) (5,626.66)

Net debt as at 31 March 2021 (12,733.08) 10,610.23 30,363.92 28,241.07
Cash flows (net) (25,827.23) 1,855.98 8,739.57 (15,231.68)

Interest expense - 981.23 4,160.94 5,142.17
Interest paid - (974.16) (4,144.48) (5,118.64)

Net debt as at 31 March 2022 (38,560.31) 12,473.28 39,119.95 13,032.92

Note 16.4: Details of stock statement submitted to banks where borrowings have been availed based on security of
current assets and a reconciliation thereof to books of accounts

% lakhs
. Amounts Reason for material
Name of Banks Quarter Ended Particulars Disclosed as per  As per books of Difference variances
statement accounts
IDBI Bank 31 December 2021  Inventory 34,004.90 34,004.90 -
Indian Bank Trade Receivables 65,314.17 62,614.59 2,699.58 Refer Note 16.4.1 below
Bank of Baroda Work-in-progress 81,342.50 81,342.50 -
Union Bank of India 30 September 2021  Inventory 32,814.95 32,814.95 -
Federal Bank Trade Receivables 60,642.88 56,740.10 3,902.78 Refer Note 16.4.1 below
Axis Bank Work-in-progress 78,843.81 78,843.81 -
Punjab National 30 June 2021 Inventory 29,594.05 29,594.05 -
Bank Trade Receivables 55,012.98 52,120.25 2,892.73 Refer Note 16.4.1 below
Central Bank of Work-in-progress 78,610.13 78,610.13 -
India 31 March 2021 Inventory 27,006.06 27,128.14 (122.08)
Bank of India Work-in-progress 66,494.81 65,651.19 g4z crer Note 16.4.2 below
E:Q‘f(ﬁflviﬁhrai” Trade Receivables 57,873.98 52,0583  5668.15 Refer Note 16.4.1 below
IDFC First Bank 31 December 2020  Inventory ' 24,981.11 24,981.11 -
Exim Bank Trade Receivables 47,830.37 45,270.21 2,560.16 Refer Note 16.4.1 below
Bank of Work-in-progress 74,282.27 74,282.27 -
Maharashtra 30 September 2020  Inventory 23,096.46 23,096.46 -
Canara Bank Trade Receivables 41,590.06 39,473.72 2,116.34 Refer Note 16.4.1 below
Indusind Bank Work-in-progress 65,175.80 65,175.80 -
30 June 2020 Inventory 21,993.83 21,993.83 -
Trade Receivables 41,858.66 37,155.85 4,702.81 Refer Note 16.4.1 below
Work-in-progress 58,245.32 58,245.32 -
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 16 Borrowings (contd.)

Notes:

Note 16.4.1: Difference is on account of income tax deduced at source (‘TDS’) by clients from running account bills and considered
as trade receivables pending receipt of TDS certificate for the purposes of submission of quarterly statements to banks.

Note 16.4.2: Difference is on account of submissions of quarterly statements being made before financial reporting closure process.

Note 16.4.3: The statement for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 was not submitted as at date of the financial statements.

Accordingly, disclosure thereof has not been included above.

NOTE 17 LEASE LIABILITIES

% in lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current 3,174.88 2,924.60
Current 1,362.35 1,921.37
Total lease liabilities 4,537.23 4,845.97
Note:
Refer note 39 for the disclosures related to Ind AS 116 - Leases
NOTE 18 PROVISIONS
% in lakhs
As at

As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 34)
- Gratuity 1,792.39 2,050.06
- Leave entitlement and compensated absences 1,919.00 1,963.65
Total non-current provisions 3,711.39 4,013.71
Current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 34)
- Gratuity 841.84 826.88
- Leave entitlement and compensated absences 249.47 222.56
Total current provisions 1,091.31 1,049.44
Total provisions 4,802.70 5,063.15
NOTE 19 CURRENT BORROWINGS
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Current maturities of long-term debts (Refer note 16) 3,702.15 1,886.14
Other loans:
- Cash credit facilities, repayable on demand (Refer note 19.1) 5,940.44 2,528.36
- Working capital demand loans, repayable on demand (Refer note 19.2) 28,641.00 24,892.83
- Bill discounting (Refer note 19.3) 946.83 -
35,528.27 27,421.19
Unsecured
- Bill discounting (Refer note 19.4) 3,544.22 2,911.73
3,544.22 2,911.73
Total current borrowings 42,774.64 32,219.06
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Note 19 Current borrowings (contd.)

Note 19.1 Cash credit facilities (secured) :

Cash credit facilities availed from consortium bankers carry effective interest rates ranging from 7.95% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. (31
March 2021: 8.65% p.a. to 11.80% p.a.) and are secured by first pari passu charge on the current assets and movable plant
and machinery (other than those charged in favour of Plant loans). These facilities are repayable on demand.

Note 19.2 Working capital demand loans (secured) :

Working capital demand loans carry effective interest rates ranging from 7.80% p.a. to 10.55% p.a. (31 March 2021 : 8.20%
p.a. to 12.15% p.a.) and are secured by first pari passu charge on the current assets and movable plant and machinery (other
than those charged in favour of Plant loans). These facilities are repayable on demand.

Note 19.3 Bill discounting (secured) :

Bill discounting facilities carry interest rate of 8.95% p.a. (31 March 2021: Nil) and are secured by first pari passu charge on
the current assets and movable plant and machinery (other than those charged in favour of Plant loans). These are repayable
between 30 - 180 days from the date of discounting/ date of invoice.

Note 19.4 Bill discounting (unsecured) :

Bill discounting facilities carry interest rate of 8.35% p.a. (31 March 2021: 8.35% p.a.) and are repayable upto 90 days from the
date of discounting/ date of invoice.

T in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 20.1) 4,214.36 1,490.03
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 89,513.09 71,202.13
Total trade payables 93,727.45 72,692.16

Note 20.1 : Dues to Micro and Small Enterprise
The dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
to the extent information available with the Group is given below:

T in lakhs

As at
31 March 2021

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of

year:
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 4,214.36 1,490.03
- Interest due 90.77 4.51

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along = -
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting period.

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 51.12 46.61
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period. 141.89 51.12

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 141.89 51.12
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Note 20.2 Trade payables are normally non-interest bearing and settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract.
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Note 20 Trade payables (contd.)

Note 20.3: Trade Payable ageing schedule

T lakhs
() MSME = 3,936.48 196.45 68.30 13.14 4,214.36
(i) Others 19,298.46 57,912.47 5,896.47 2,927.28 3,478.41 89,513.09
(i) Disputed dues- MSME = = = = = =
(iv) Disputed dues- Others = = = = = =
Total as at 31 March 2022 19,298.46 61,848.95 6,092.92 2,995.58 3,491.55 93,727.45
% lakhs
Particulars Unbilled Dues Lgrf: ;Zaar: 1-2 Years 2-3 years More tg:;,-g Total
() MSME - 1,387.38 88.44 8.13 6.08 1,490.03
(i) Others 18,699.64 44,894.72 3,384.05 2,943.54 1,280.18 71,202.13
(i) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -
Total as at 31 March 2021 18,699.64 46,282.10 3,472.49 2,951.67 1,286.26 72,692.16
NOTE 21 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
2 in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Interest accrued but not due 1,223.87 1,118.66
Interest accrued and due (Refer note 20.1) 141.89 51.12
Amount due to related parties 2,523.19 2,089.63
Liability for capital goods 561.02 2,061.46
Employee related dues 3,547.93 3,847.35
Foreign currency forward contract 0.58 2.00
Unpaid dividends » 9.00 9.13
Others 283.96 106.91
Total other current financial liabilities 8,291.44 9,286.26
A Not due for credit to Investor Education and Protection Fund
NOTE 22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
T in lakhs
As at

As at
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Advances from contractees 57,838.59 56,277.33
Due to customer 24,932.92 21,645.14
Statutory dues payable 1,500.33 1,107.20
Others 241.75 186.59
Total other current liabilities 84,513.59 79,216.26
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 23 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Year ended
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
Year ended

31 March 2021

Contract revenue 3,80,866.09 2,71,831.46
Other operating revenues
Service income:
- from related perties 12.40 93.44
- from others 23.16 -
Provision no longer required written back - 848.21
Total revenue from operations 3,80,901.65 2,72,773.11

Note: Refer note 36(b) for transaction with Related Parties and note 38 for disclosures as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

NOTE 24 OTHER INCOME

Year ended
31 March 2022

% in lakhs
Year ended

31 March 2021

Interest income
- on bank deposits 341.12 408.01
- on financial assets carried at amortised cost 74.43 82.98
- on income tax refund 74.78 237.71
- on sales tax refund = 105.43
- others 13.87 12.85
504.20 846.98
Other non-operating income
- Insurance claim 361.85 8.01
- Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 295.54 345.69
- Miscellaneous income 24.29 42.58
Total other income 1,185.88 1,243.26
NOTE 25 COST OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS CONSUMED
2 in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Stock at beginning of the year 31,045.02 26,736.05
Add: Purchases 1,32,423.89 90,698.93
Less: sale of scrap and unserviceable material (8,274.37) (1,063.09)
1,60,194.54 1,16,371.89
Less: Stock at the end of the year (36,250.11) (31,045.02)
Total cost of construction materials consumed 1,23,944.43 85,326.87
NOTE 26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
2 in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries and wages 33,493.34 31,098.27
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 34) 3,015.97 2,630.14
Gratuity (Refer note 34) 665.85 695.19
Staff welfare 101.78 85.15
Total employee benefits expense 37,276.94 34,508.75
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 27 FINANCE COSTS

T in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest expense on:

- on banks and financial institutions 5,142.17 5,432.89
- on advances from contractees 3,322.33 2,987.48
- on others 835.77 582.61
9,300.27 9,002.98
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 39) 490.38 702.95

Other borrowing costs
- Bank charges and guarantee commission * 4,369.31 4,113.59
Total finance costs 14,159.96 13,819.52

*The Company pays commission on bank guarantees on quarterly, yearly or upfront basis depending on the terms of sanction of Banks. Accordingly,
Company makes the BG commission payment to Banks as and when due for the unexpired BG on case to case basis as per sanction terms.

NOTE 28 OTHER EXPENSES

T in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Plant hire expenses (Refer note 39) 22,522.50 15,041.40
Power and fuel 16,339.91 7,743.20
Rates and taxes 4,049.54 3,887.17
Travelling expenses 582.23 704.00
Site transport and conveyance 5,335.42 3,925.75
Repairs and maintenance:
- Plant and machinery 969.62 940.17
- Others 247.67 234.33
Insurance 3,442.17 3,057.47
Professional fees 3,808.43 2,773.77
Rent (Refer note 39) 3,682.60 3,479.99
Consumption of spares 3,298.23 1,708.59
Security charges 1,530.46 1,540.06
Temporary site installations 445.93 419.12
Postage, telephone and telegram 120.88 124.47
Auditor remuneration (Refer note 28.1) 126.40 125.86
Impairment allowance on financial and other assets (net) 913.94 1,252.03
Water charges 558.19 653.96
Printing and stationery 188.12 128.82
Infotech expenses 732.60 944.01
Royalty expense 1,597.64 1,076.54
Exchange loss (net) 440.46 59.20
Directors’ sitting fees 30.90 37.40
CSR expenses (Refer note 28.2) 123.85 215.18
Miscellaneous expenses 2,410.64 2,362.17
Total other expenses 73,498.33 52,434.66
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 28 Other expenses (contd.)

Note 28.1: Auditor Remuneration

Year ended
31 March 2022

T in lakhs
Year ended

31 March 2021

- Audit fees (including tax audit) 76.99 91.00
- Limited review 29.75 20.00
- Certification fees 16.76 13.78
- Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 2.90 1.08

126.40 125.86

Note 28.2: CSR expenditure

As per the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 every year the Group is required to spend at least 2% of its average net
profit made during the immediately three preceding financial years on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities.
Following is the information regarding projects undertaken and expenses incurred on CSR activities.

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022: % 123.85 lakhs (31 March 2021:
¥ 190.18 lakhs)
b.  Amount spent during the year on CSR activities: ¥ 123.85 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 215.18 lakhs) the details of which is as
given below:
3 lakhs
Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
In cash Incash  Yettobe paid Total
in cash in cash
Construction/acquisition of any = = = 45.18 - 45.18
asset
On purposes other than above 123.85 = 123.85 170.00 - 170.00
Total CSR expenditure 123.85 - 123.85 215.18* - 215.18*
*This expenditure includes an unspent amount of Rs 25 Lakh pertaining to the FY 2019-20, which was spent in the FY 2020-21.
c.  Amount of shortfall at the end of the year ended 31 March 2022 out of the amount required to be spent during the year : Nil
d. Total of previous years’ shortfall : Nil
e. Reason for shortfalls : NA
f. Nature of CSR activities undertaken : Education, Health care, Rural development and Covid 19 relief activities.

NOTE 29 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Basic and diluted EPS

Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit computation for basic earnings per share of ¥ 1 each
Net profit as per the Statement of Profit and Loss available for equity shareholders [ lakhs) 6,880.51 1,575.62
Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS computation (Nos.) 17,17,87,584 17,17,87,584
EPS - Basic ® 4.01 0.92
- Diluted ®) 4.01 0.92
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

A. Contingent liabilities
T in lakhs

As at
31 March 2021

() Guarantees given by banks in respect of contracting commitments in the normal course of

business

- for the Group 37,070.96 27,147.93

- for unincorporated entities 20,289.08 24,854.16
(i) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (Refer notes below) 22,384.47 18,315.47
(i) Sales Tax/ Value Added Tax ('VAT') matters pending in appeals 6,360.10 6,443.80
(iv) Income Tax matters pending in appeal 1,020.03 1,019.93
(v) Excise duty and service tax matters pending in appeals 4,487.58 4,539.28
(vi) Property tax 2,982.98 2,452.00

(vii) Provident Fund
Based on the judgement by the Honorable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is not
determinable at present, in view of uncertainty on the applicability of the judgement to the Group with respect to timing
and the components of its compensation structure. In absence of further clarification, the Group has been advised to
await further developments in this matter to reasonably assess the implications on its financial statements, if any.

Notes:

1. The Group has a number of claims on customers for price escalation and / or variation in contract work. In certain
cases which are currently under arbitration, the customers have raised counter-claims. The Group has received legal
advice that none of the counter-claims are legally tenable. Accordingly no provision is considered necessary in respect
of these counter claims.

2. It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the aforementioned
contingent liabilities pending resolution of the respective proceedings. The Group does not expect any reimbursements
in respect of the above contingent liabilities other than stated therein above. Future cash outflows in respect of the
above are determinable only on receipt of judgments/ decisions pending with various forums/ authorities. The Group
does not expect any outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision is made in
respect thereof.

B. Commitments

T in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

() Guarantees given on behalf of and letter of credit utilised by unincorporated entities 9,453.70 14,009.50
(i) Other commitments (net of advances) 21,356.80 4,691.11

The Group’s trade receivables and unbilled work-in-progress as at 31 March 2022 include amount aggregating ¥ 1,295.99 lakhs
and ¥ 14,947.94 lakhs, respectively, which represent various receivables/ claims which have been raised based on the terms and
conditions implicit in the contracts of certain completed/ nearing completion projects. These receivables/ claims are mainly in
respect of cost over-run arising due to client caused delays, suspension of projects, deviation in design and change in scope of
work; for which Group is at various stages of negotiations/ discussions/ arbitration/ litigation with the clients. Considering the
contractual tenability, progress of negotiations/ discussions/arbitration/ litigations and as legally advised in certain contentious
matters, the management is confident of recovery of these receivables.

The Holding Company’s managing director who is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Group, examines
the performance of the business and allocates funds on the basis of a single reportable segment i.e. ‘Construction’. Further,
the Group has operations mainly in India and has no other reportable segment.

Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment liability, total
cost incurred to acquire segment assets and total amount of charge for depreciation during the period, is as reflected in the
Consolidated Financial Statements as on and for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION
TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 33 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
Note 33.1 Subsidiaries

Ownership interest held by the

Name of the entity Country of

group (%)

Ownership interest held by non

controlling interests (%)

incorporation —_— —_—
CREleZozes 31 March 2021 Rl Eide 222l 31 March 2021

Principal activities

ITD Cementation Projects India Limited India 100.00 100.00 o - Construction
ITD Cemindia JV NA 80.00 A 80.00 ~ 20.00 ~ 20.00 A Construction
ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium NA 95.00 95.00 5.00 5.00 Construction

A Pursuant to the Joint Venture Project Implementation Management Agreement entered between ITD Cementation India Limited and Italian-Thai
Development Public Company Limited in respect of the five (5) projects being executed by ITD Cemindia JV, ITD Cementation India Limited will
effectively have 100% share in the profit/ (loss) of these projects. These projects are accordingly accounted for in the consolidated financial statements.
However, ITD Cementation India Limited and Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited will continue to share profit / (loss) in the other projects

of the Joint Venture in the ratio of 80% and 20% respectively.

Note 33.2 Non-controlling interests (NCI)

The following table summarises the information relating to each of the subsidiaries that has NCI. The amounts disclosed for

each subsidiary are before intra-group eliminations

% lakhs

Particulars

Balance Sheet

ITD Cemindia JV

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

ITD Cem-Maytas Consortium

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Non-current assets 6,023.90 7,866.74 - -
Current assets 38,826.72 42,896.97 7,029.28 3,453.38
Non-current liabilities = - = -
Current liabilities 55,534.09 55,847.73 4,169.61 2,094.84
Net assets / (liabilities) (10,683.47) (5,084.02) 2,859.67 1,358.54
Net assets attributable to NCI 206.93 228.40 142.99 67.93
Total income 34,700.95 49,764.35 26,836.79 7,144.91

Net Profit / (loss) for the year (5,599.45) (2,871.22) 1,501.13 394.17
Other comprehensive income - - = -
Total comprehensive income (5,599.45) (2,871.22) 1,501.13 394.17
Net Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI (21.47) (0.10) 75.06 19.71

Other comprehensive income allocated to NCI - - - -
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) allocated to NCI (21.47) (0.10) 75.06 19.71

Cash flow from operating activities (5,136.97) 13,061.56 5,356.60 1,152.89
Cash flow from investing activities (72.75) 693.93 - -

Cash flow from financing activities 6,752.82 (14,870.62) (1,969.47) (246.00)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,543.10 (1,115.13) 3,387.13 906.89

Note 33.3 Unincorporated entities - Joint Venture

Ownership interest held by the group (%)

Name of the entity

Carrying amount as at *

31 March 2021 31 March 2021

Principal activities

ITD - ITD Cem JV 49.00 49.00 57.49 57.49 Construction

ITD - ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD - ITD 40.00 40.00 - - Construction

Cementation)

CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV A 60.00 60.00 - - Construction

ITD Cem - BBJ JV /A 51.00 51.00 - - Construction
57.49 57.49

* Unlisted entity - no quoted price available

A Though the Group’s effective interest in the joint venture exceeds 50%, the entity has been classified as a joint venture. The management has
assessed whether or not the Group has control over the entity based on whether the Group has practical ability to direct relevant activities unilaterally.
In this case, based on specific joint venture agreement, the management concluded that the Group does not have practical ability to direct the relevant
activities unilaterally but has such ability along with the other co-venturer.
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CONSOLIDATED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 34: DISCLOSURE RELATING TO EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AS PER IND AS 19 ‘EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A

a)

Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employee who has completed five
years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service

and salary at retirement age.

Changes in defined benefit obligations

a) Changes in defined benefit obligations

31 March 2022

T in lakhs

31 March 2021

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 5,834.18 5,506.30
Interest cost (net) 399.64 376.08
Current service cost 448.15 461.40
Remeasurements - Net actuarial gains (282.74) (16.89)
Benefits paid from the fund (595.29) (492.71)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 5,803.94 5,834.18
b) Changes in fair value of plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 2,957.24 2,496.45
Interest income 202.57 170.50
Contribution by employer 620.87 600.00
Benefits paid from the fund (595.29) (492.71)
(Loss) / Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) (15.68) 183.00
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 3,169.71 2,957.24
c) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss”
Interest cost (net) 197.07 205.58
Current service cost 448.15 461.40
Total 645.22 666.98
d) Remeasurement (gains)/losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gains on obligation for the period (282.74) (16.89)
Loss / (gains) on plan assets 15.68 (183.00)
Total (267.06) (199.89)
e) Actuarial assumptions
Expected rate on plan assets 7.23% p.a. 6.83% p.a.
Discount rate 7.23% p.a. 6.83% p.a.
Salary escalation rate (over a long-term) 5.50% p.a. 5.50% p.a.
Mortality rate Indian assured Indian assured
lives mortality lives mortality
2012-14 Urban (2006-08)
Attrition rate :
- For ages 44 years and below 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
- For ages 45 years and above 2.50% p.a. 2.50% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Further, the gratuity expense for the year includes expenses aggregating ¥ 20.63 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 28.21 lakhs)

which have not been valued by an actuary.

Annual Report 2021-22

189



as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 34: Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits (contd.)
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f) Quantities sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the
valuation of the defined benefit obligation, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. The significant actuarial
assumptions are discount rate and salary escalation rate.

The methods and type of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to previous year.

T in lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2021

1% increase

i. Discount rate (875.07) (387.64)

ii. Salary escalation rate 436.62 451.57
1% decrease

i. Discount rate 433.42 449.98

ii. Salary escalation rate (384.19) (895.73)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual charge in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as the assumptions may be correlated.

g) Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation

T in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

Within the next 12 months 688.70 748.67
Between 2 and 5 years 838.10 840.48
6 to 10 years 802.63 816.00

Defined benefit obligations - Provident Fund

In accordance with The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952, all eligible employees of
the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund plan in which both the employee and employer (at
a determined rate) contribute monthly to “ITD Cementation India Limited Workmen Provident Fund”, a Trust set up by
the Holding Company to manage the investments and distribute the amounts to employees at the time of separation
from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. This plan is a defined obligation plan as the Group is obligated
to provide its members a rate of return which should, at a minimum, meet the interest rate declared by Government
administered provident fund. A part of the Group’s contribution is transferred to Government administered pension fund.
The contributions made by the Group and the shortfall of interest, if any, are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss under “Employee benefits expense”.

In accordance with an actuarial valuation of provident fund liabilities on the basis of guidance issued by Actuarial Society
of India and based on the assumptions as mentioned below, there is no deficiency in the interest cost as the present value
of the expected future earnings of the fund is greater than the expected amount to be credited to the individual members
based on the expected guaranteed rate of interest of Government administered provident fund.

The details of fund and plan assets are given below:

T in lakhs

As at

31 March 2021

Fair value of plan assets 36,658.00 32,571.55
Present value of defined benefit obligations 35,188.00 31,262.77
Net excess 1,470.00 1,308.78

The plan assets have been primarily invested in Government securities and corporate bonds.
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CONSOLIDATED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 34: Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits (contd.)

The principal assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of interest guarantee under the deterministic

approach are as follows:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate 7.23% p.a. 6.85% p.a.
Guaranteed rate of return 8.10% p.a. 8.50% p.a.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has contributed % 1,878.92 lakhs ( 31 March 2021: % 1,690.18 lakhs)

Defined contribution plans
T in lakhs

a) The Group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Contribution to superannuation fund 1,137.05 939.96

b) The expenses for leave entitlement and compensated absences is recognized in the same manner as gratuity and
provision of ¥ 204.42 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 239.52 lakhs) has been made during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Current/ non-current classification

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gratuity

Current 841.84 826.88
Non-current 1,792.39 2,050.06
2,634.23 2,876.94

Leave entitlement and compensated absences
Current 249.47 222.56
Non-current 1,919.00 1,963.65
2,168.47 2,186.21

NOTE 35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of the financial assets are included at amounts at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

(@)

(b)

Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities,
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest
rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for
the expected losses of these receivables.

Annual Report 2021-22 191



Cem

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 35 Financial instruments (contd.)

A Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2022 were as follows:

3 lakhs
Ea Fair value Derivative .
Particulars Refer note | Amortised cost through profit Cg:;gl:ggegts?\z Ir}itLuen(]gir:; HOIE car\g:zg
Sl Income relationship

Assets:
Other financial assets 6 8,563.34 - - - 8,563.34
Trade receivables 11 62,187.57 - - - 62,187.57
Cash and cash equivalents 12 38,560.31 - - - 38,560.31
Bank balances other than cash and 13 10,589.17 - - - 10,589.17
cash equivalents
Liabilities:
Borrowings 16,19 51,510.62 - - - 51,510.62
Lease liabilities 17 4,537.23 - - - 4,537.23
Trade payables 20 93,727.45 - - - 93,727.45
Other financial liabilities 21 8,290.86 - - 0.58 8,291.44

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2021 were as follows:

T lakhs
Fair value Fair value Derivative )
Particulars Refer note ~ Amortised cost through profit C(t)r:r:?:gr?egts?veer Ir}itLueﬂgir:; Total car\g:zg
orloss Income relationship

Assets:
Other financial assets 6 5,694.84 - - - 5,694.84
Trade receivables 11 58,085.94 - - - 58,085.94
Cash and cash equivalents 12 12,733.08 - - - 12,733.08
Bank balances other than cash and 13 7,967.62 - - - 7,967.62
cash equivalents
Liabilities:
Borrowings 16,19 40,915.07 - - - 40,915.07
Lease liabilities 17 4,845.97 - - - 4,845.97
Trade payables 20 72,692.16 - - - 72,692.16
Other financial liabilities 21 9,284.26 - - 2.00 9,286.26

B Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - Inputsotherthanquoted pricesincluded within Level 1 thatare observablefortheassetorliability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at each
reporting period:

T in lakhs

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Particulars
Level 1 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Foreign currency forward contract liability - (0.58) - - (2.00) -
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CONSOLIDATED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

NOTE 36 DISCLOSURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND-AS 24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A) Names of related parties and description of relationship
a) Enterprise where control exists
i) Ultimate Parent Company
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited

b) Other related parties with whom the Group had transactions
i)  Unincorporated entities - Joint Venture
ITD - ITD Cem JV

ITD - ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD - ITD Cementation)
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV
ITD Cem - BBJ JV (incorporated on)

ii) Key managerial personnel (KMP)
Mr. Piyachai Karnasuta - Chairman

Mr. Santi Jongkongka - Executive Vice Chairman

Mr. Jayanta Basu - Managing Director

Mr. Sunil Shah Singh - Independent Director

Mr. D.P. Roy - Independent Director (upto 5 August 2021)
Mr. Pankaj I.C. Jain - Independent Director

Ms. Ramola Mahajani - Independent Director

Mr. Prasad Patwardhan — Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Rahul Neogi - Company Secretary

B) Transactions with related parties (excluding reimbursements):
% in lakhs

Nature of Transactions Relationship 31 sz;:gggg 31 h\;e;;he;g;?

Contract Revenue

CEC-ITDCEM-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 138.92 4,804.03
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 6,987.02 1,435.36
7,125.94 6,239.39

Royalty expense
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited Ultimate Parent Company 1,597.64 1,076.54

Service income:
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 12.40 93.44

Share of profit/(loss) from unincorporated entities

CEC-ITDCEM-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 2,892.90 2,651.55

ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 434.84 697.96

ITD-ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD-ITD Unincorporated entity (joint venture) (28.88) (45.71)

Cementation)

ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 0.00* 0.00*
3,298.86 3,303.80

* represents amounts less than ¥ 1,000
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 36 Disclosure in accordance with Ind-AS 24 Related Party Transactions (contd.)

C)

194

Nature of Transactions

Relationship

Year ended
31 March 2022

% in lakhs
Year ended

31 March 2021

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 115.75 339.81
CEC-ITDCEM-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 1,033.12 65.67
1,148.87 405.48
Purchases of Construction materials and spares
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 298.85 706.77
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 644.53 352.10
943.38 1,058.87
Remuneration paid/payable”
Mr. Santi Jongkongka Key managerial Personnel 233.84 217.49
Mr. Jayanta Basu Key managerial Personnel 2083.48 172.58
Mr. Prasad Patwardhan Key managerial Personnel 120.73 108.25
Mr. Rahul Neogi Key managerial Personnel 69.01 64.30
627.06 562.62
A Does not include provisional gratuity liability valued by an actuary, as separate figures are not available.
Director sitting fees
Mr. Piyachai Karnasuta Key managerial Personnel 7.50 8.60
Ms. Ramola Mahajani Key managerial Personnel 6.00 6.50
Mr. Sunil Shah Singh Key managerial Personnel 7.60 8.00
Mr. Pankaj I.C. Jain Key managerial Personnel 6.90 6.60
Mr. D. P. Roy Key managerial Personnel 2.90 7.70
30.90 37.40
Note : All the transactions have been undertaken at arm’s length price
Outstanding balances:
T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balances - payable
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited Ultimate Parent Company 527.73 351.93
CEC-ITDCEM-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 1,120.00 1,120.00
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 874.62 617.70
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 0.84 -
2,523.19 2,089.63
Deemed Investment #
ITD-ITDCem JV # Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 8,780.60 18,448.23
ITD-ITDCem JV (Consortium of ITD-ITD Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 495.44 524.32
Cementation)
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 2,009.51 393.71
11,285.55 19,366.26
Balances - receivable
Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited Ultimate Parent Company 409.09 343.45
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) - 0.05
409.09 343.50
Trade receivable
CEC-ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 56.59 354.52
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 1,242.86 686.45
1,299.45 1,040.97

ITD Cementation India Limited



CONSOLIDATED

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 36 Disclosure in accordance with Ind-AS 24 Related Party Transactions (contd.)

% in lakhs

As at
31 March 2021

Corporate guarantee issued on behalf of

ITD-ITD Cem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 6,362.50 7,742.50
CEC -ITD Cem-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 3,091.20 6,267.00
9,453.70 14,009.50

Bank guarantee issued on behalf of
CEC-ITDCEM-TPL JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 13,584.48 16,980.60
ITD-ITDCem JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 4,111.79 5,280.75
ITD Cem - BBJ JV Unincorporated entity (joint venture) 2,592.81 2,592.81
20,289.08 24,854.16

# Receivables from unincorporated entities represent Group’s net investment in the entities, have been reclassified as deemed investment under
Ind AS. (Refer note 5.1)

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s focus is to
foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk. Major financial instruments affected by market risk includes loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
total debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact
on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

T in lakhs
As at
31 March 2021
Increase in basis points 50 basis points
Effect on profit before tax, decrease by 66.13 46.08
Decrease in basis points 50 basis points
Effect on profit before tax, increase by 65.90 45.88

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

The Group has several balances in foreign currency and consequently the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk. The
exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years, which has affected
the results of the Group, and may fluctuate substantially in the future. The Group evaluates exchange rate exposure arising
from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk as at 31 March 2022:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 37 Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.)

31 March 2021
In Euro lakhs

31 March 2022
In USD lakhs

1.44 0.78

Trade payables

During the current year to mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-INR cash flows are monitored and
forward exchange contracts are entered into in accordance with the Group’s risk management policies. Generally, the
Group’s risk management procedures distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows (due within 6 months) from
longer-term cash flows (due after 6 months).

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts:

As at 31 March 2021
In Euro lakhs
0.78

As at 31 March 2022

T lakhs
68.84

% lakhs
163.89

In USD lakhs

Forward contracts 0.55 1.44

The foreign exchange forward contracts mature within 12 months. The table below analyses the derivative financial
instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as of the balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

In USD lakhs

In Euro lakhs

In Euro lakhs

Not later than six month

0.55

1.44

0.78

Later than six month and not later than twelve months -

Sensitivity analysis
The Group’s exposure in foreign currency is not material and hence the impact of any significant fluctuation in the exchange
rates is not expected to have a material impact on the operating profits of the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The
maximum exposure of the financial assets are contributed by trade receivables and other financial assets.

a Trade receivable
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from two main classes of trade receivables
i.e receivables from sale to government corporations and receivables from sales to private third parties. A substantial
portion of the Group’s trade receivables are from government promoted corporations customers having strong credit
worthiness. Further, Group’s historical experience of collecting receivables is that credit risk is extremely low. Hence trade
receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets.
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
% lakhs % % lakhs %
Receivable from government corporations 44,796.40 72.03% 39,310.74 74.05%
Receivable from private parties 17,391.17 27.97% 13,775.20 25.95%
Total trade receivable 62,187.57 100.00% 53,085.94 100.00%
b  Financial assets other than trade receivables

196

Financial assets other than trade receivables comprise of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loan to
employees and other financial assets. The Group monitors the credit exposure on these financial assets on a case-to-case
basis. Based on the Group’s historical experience, the credit risk on other financial assets is also low.

The following table gives details in respect of contract revenues generated from the top customer and top 5 customers
for the year ended:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Particulars

ELGH % of Revenue T lakhs % of Revenue
Revenue from top customer 55,456.84 14.56% 55,238.64 20.32%
Revenue from top five customers 1,72,853.16 45.38% 1,47,514.97 54.27%
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Note 37 Financial risk management objectives and policies (contd.)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, one (1) customer {31 March 2021: Two (2) customers}, individually, accounted for more
than 10% of the revenue.

The movement of the allowance for lifetime expected credit loss, including work-in-progress, is stated below:

T in lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 5,132.28 3,989.03
Changes in loss allowances
Additions 913.94 1,143.25
Closing balance 6,046.22 5,132.28
Liquidity risk

Liquidity is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable
price. The Group’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Group’s net
liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

T in lakhs

Particulars On demand ST 1-5years D Total
1 year 5 years

As at 31 March 2022
Borrowings 34,581.44 8,193.20 8,735.98 - 51,510.62
Trade payables - 93,727.45 - - 93,727.45
Interest accrued - 1,365.76 - - 1,365.76
Lease liabilities - 1,819.95 3,692.20 - 5,512.15
Other financial liabilities - 6,925.68 - - 6,925.68
Total 34,581.44 ||1,12,032.04 12,428.18 - 111,59,041.66
T in lakhs
Particulars On demand Les? ;ZZ’: 1-5years Mosrey;hae:rS\ Total
As at 31 March 2021
Borrowings 27,421.19 4,797.87 8,696.01 - 40,915.07
Trade payables - 72,692.16 - - 72,692.16
Interest accrued - 1,169.78 - - 1,169.78
Lease liabilities - 2,371.04 3,527.38 139.92 6,038.34
Other financial liabilities - 8,116.48 - - 8,116.48
Total 27,421.19 89,147.33 12,223.39 139.92 1,28,931.83
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Group applied Ind AS 115 for the first time by using the modified retrospective method of adoption effective 1 April 2019. The adoption of
this new standard did not have any impact on retained earnings as at 1 April 2019 for the revenue contracts that are not completed as at that
date, except in case of presentation / disclosure of the balances in relation to construction contracts, which have been explained below. Also
refer note 2(xvii)(a) for accounting policy on revenue recognition.

(a) Disaggregation of revenue
The Group’s entire business falls under one operational segment of ‘Engineering and Construction’. Contract revenue represents

revenue from Engineering and Construction contracts wherein the performance obligation is satisfied over a period of time. Further,

the management believes that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows from all its contracts are similar.
Accordingly, disclosure of revenue recognised from contracts disaggregated into categories has not been made.

(b) Unsatisfied performance obligations
The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied as at the end of reporting period is ¥

1,554,790.09 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 1,173,233.47 lakhs). Most of Group’s contracts have a life cycle of 2-3 years. Management expects

that around 25% - 30 % of the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied contracts as of 31 March 2022 will be recognised as revenue
during next reporting period depending upon the progress on each contracts. The remaining amounts are expected to be recognised over
the next 3 years. The amount disclosed above does not include variable consideration.

(c) Contract balances:
Movement in contract balances during the year:

(d)

(e)

(ii)

(i)

R in lakhs)
Particulars Con"acf,vgf:.?,:s.é%;?gfsc; Contract Liigigﬂzfo(ln?:re) Net Contract balances
Balance as at 1 April 2020 70,210.20 21,091.86 49,118.34
Net increase 16,212.44 553.28 15,659.16
Balance as at 31 March 2021 86,422.64 21,645.14 64,777.50
Net increase (8,771.27) 3,287.78 (7,059.05)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 82,651.37 24,932.92 57,718.45

Note: Decrease in contract assets is primarily due to lower revenue recognition as compared to progress billing during the year in certain
projects, whereas increase in contract liabilities is due to higher progress billing as compared to revenue recognition during the year in
certain other projects.

Revenue recognised during the year from opening balance of contract liability (i.e. due to customer) amounts to
¥ 3,499.03 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 4,893.71 lakhs).

Revenue recognised during the year from the performance obligation satisfied upto previous year amounts to Nil (31
March 2021: Nil lakhs).

There are no reconciliation items between revenue from contracts with customers and revenue recognised with contract
price.

Cost to obtain or fulfil the contract:

Amount of amortisation recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year : Nil

Amount recognised as contract assets as at 31 March 2022 : Nil

Right-of-use Assets:

The net carrying value of right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2022 amounts to ¥ 4,151.89 lakhs (31 March 2021: % 4,301.44 lakhs)
have been disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. (Also refer note 3B)

Lease liabilities:

As at 31 March 2022, the lease obligations aggregating ¥ 4,537.23 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 4,845.97 lakhs) have been
classified to lease liabilities on the face of the balance sheet.(Also refer note 17)

(i)
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(i) The following is the movement in lease liabilities :

T in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,845.97 6,492.11
Additions during the year 1,812.83 957.17
Finance cost accrued during the year 490.38 702.95
Payment of lease liabilities (2,484.75) (8,302.38)
Termination during the year (127.20) (3.88)
Balance as at the end of the year 4,537.23 4,845.97
(iii) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilties:
[ in lakhs)
Lease Liabilties Contractual cash flows
Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-5years 5 years and above
As at 31 March 2022 4,537.23 5,5612.15 1,819.95 3,692.20 -
As at 31 March 2021 4,845.97 6,038.34 2,371.04 3,627.38 139.92
The Company recognised the following in the statement of profit and loss:
T in lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 1,936.70 2,904.22
Interest expense on lease liabilities included in finance cost (Refer note 27) 490.38 702.95
Rent expense pertaining to leases of low-value assets - -
Rent expense pertaining to leases with less than twelve months of lease included under plant 26,205.10 18,521.39
hire expenses and rent expenses (Refer note 28)

NOTE 40 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The Group strives to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that
they can maximise returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stake holders. The aim to maintain an optimal capital

structure and minimise cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or adjust the dividend payment to shareholders (if permitted). Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors

its capital using the gearing ratio which is total debt divided by total capital (equity).

T in lakhs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total debt 51,510.62 40,915.07
Total equity 1,13,117.18 1,06,569.37
Total debts to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 0.46 0.38

In the long run, the Group’s strategy is continue to maintain a gearing ratio of less than 0.5.
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as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

T in lakhs

As at
31 March 2021

Dividend on equity shares declared and paid during the year

Dividend of ¥ 0.12 per share for year ended 31 March 2021 206.15 515.36
(Year ended 31 March 2020: % 0.30 per share)

206.15 515.36

Proposed dividend on equity shares not recognised as liability*

Dividend of ¥ 0.45 per share for year ended 31 March 2022 773.05 206.15
(Year ended 31 March 2021 : % 0.12 per share)

773.05 206.15

*Proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Holding Company at the Annual General Meeting and
therefore not recognised as liability as at the Balance Sheet date.

(i)

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group

for holding any Benami property.

(ii)
(i)

(vi)

(vii)
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The Group does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond
the statutory period.

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ITD Cementation India Limited



CONSOLIDATED

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(viii) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(ix) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(x) The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on the current or previous
financial year.

Previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified whereever necessary, to conform to the current period’s classification
in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013, effective 1 April 2021.

This is a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

Partner Executive Vice Chairman Managing Director

Membership No: 109632 DIN: 08441312 DIN: 08291114
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ACA No.44453 ACS No.10653

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022
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